
 

 

Memo 
To: City Commission  

From: Toby Dougherty, City Manager  

Date: 7-23-15 

Re:  August 6, 2015 Work Session   

Please find the attached agenda and supporting documentation for the August 6, 2015 Work 
Session.   
 
Item 2 – NWK Investments – Request for Economic Development Incentives 
 
Please refer to my attached memorandum regarding the request for economic incentives by NWK 
Investments. Aaron White of the Ellis County Coalition for Economic Development and James 
Millensifer of Chance Management will be at the work session to present the proposal to the 
Governing Body.  
 
Items 3 & 4 – S&W Alley Pavement – Benefit District Resolution and Award of Bid 
 
Please refer to the attached memorandum from John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works, 
regarding the S&W alley pavement benefit district and award of bid. The two owners along the 
alley behind S&W and the former Hadley Hospital have petitioned to create a benefit district to 
pave the alley. The bids came in over the original engineer’s estimate. The petitioners believe that, 
while over the engineer’s estimate, the bids are reflective of the current market and want to move 
forward with the creation of the benefit district. There is no financial impact on the City for this 
process as the cost in total will be special assessed to the two adjacent owners. 
 
Item 5 – Tallgrass Addition Phase 5 – Inspection   
 
Please refer to the attached memorandum from John Braun regarding the Tallgrass Addition 
Phase 5 inspection and testing services. 
 
Item 6 – Sewer Rate Study/Adjustment 
 
Please refer to the attached memorandum from Kim Rupp, Finance Director, regarding sewer rate 
adjustments. At the July 16th Work Session, the City Commission was presented with a 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 



recommended series of rate adjustments to cover operating expenses, capital maintenance 
needs and debt service for the wastewater facility being designed at this time. The City 
Commission asked for several options to be created and brought back for consideration. City staff 
went through a myriad of options and is presenting four for further consideration. City staff is also 
modifying our recommended option to slightly lower the first year and cumulative increases. At the 
end of Kim’s memo, he created visuals for each option that have all of the pertinent information. At 
the work session, Kim will have a blank spreadsheet that can be adjusted on the fly so if the City 
Commission wishes to look at other options, it will be able to.  
 
Item 7 – 2016 Budget – Continued Discussion 
 
This is the last opportunity for the City Commission to make modifications to the 2016 Budget 
before it is adopted on August 13, 2015. City staff will also be asking the Commission to 
determine allocations for outside agencies as they are currently left at 2015 funding levels.  
 
aw   
 
 
 



CITY OF HAYS 
CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 6, 2015 – 6:30 P.M.  
AGENDA 

1. ITEM FOR REVIEW: July 16, 2015 Work Session Notes (PAGE 1)
DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: Kim Rupp, Director of Finance

2. ITEM FOR REVIEW: NWK Investments – Request for Economic Development
Incentives (PAGE 67)
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Aaron White, Ellis County Coalition for Economic Development

James Millensifer, Chance Management 

3. ITEM FOR REVIEW: S&W Alley Pavement – Benefit District Resolution (PAGE 177)
DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: Greg Sund, Director of Public Works

4. ITEM FOR REVIEW: S&W Alley Pavement – Award of Bid (PAGE 195)
DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: Greg Sund, Director of Public Works

5. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Tallgrass Addition Phase 5 – Inspection (PAGE 201)
DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: Greg Sund, Director of Public Works

6. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Sewer Rate Study/Adjustment (PAGE 253)
DEPARTMENT HEADS RESPONSIBLE:  Kim Rupp, Director of Finance

Bernie Kitten, Director of Utilities  

7. ITEM FOR REVIEW: 2016 Budget – Continued Discussion
PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Toby Dougherty, City Manager

8. OTHER ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED)

10. ADJOURNMENT

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 



 



City of Hays 
City Commission 

Work Session Notes 
Thursday, July 16, 2015 – 6:30 p.m. 

Present: Eber Phelps, Shaun Musil, James Meier, Lance Jones, John Bird, Toby 

Dougherty and Kim Rupp 

The attached list includes all that were in attendance at the Work Session and 

Public Meeting. 

July 2, 2015 Work Session Notes 

There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the work session 

held on July 2, 2015; the minutes stand approved as presented. 

Public Meeting for Wastewater Facility Plan Discussion to Meet SRF Terms 
and Conditions 

It is necessary to hold a public meeting to discuss the Wastewater Facility 

Plan to assure compliance with the terms and conditions of the State Revolving 

Fund (SRF) Loan.  
Finance Director, Kim Rupp, reviewed several funding options for the 

wastewater treatment facility. He explained lower interest rates and other 

benefits the SRF Loan offers in comparison to General Obligation Bonds or Utility 

Revenue Bonds. 

Stan Christopher, Project Manager with HDR Engineering, Inc. who is 

providing the Owner Representative services for this project, presented the 

details of the wastewater facility plan to the Commissioners and the public. 

(Slides of the presentation are attached to these Work Session notes.)  He 

explained the aging wastewater treatment facility was originally constructed in 

1953 with upgrades in 1967 and 1992. Kansas Department of Health and 

1



Environment (KDHE) has placed new, much tighter discharge limits and the 

facility we have in place is not able to meet those discharge limits. 

Mr. Christopher discussed the new proposed effluent limits, the evaluation 

of treatment alternatives, the evaluation of procurement alternatives, the costs to 

construct the recommended alternative, the costs to operate the facilities, and 

the anticipated impacts on the sewer user rates. Environmental impacts of the 

proposed project were also discussed.   

Mr. Christopher stated some structures at the current facility have served 

their useful life and are not available for reuse. 

 Commissioner Schwaller asked what would happen to these structures. 

Mr. Christopher stated that we can find uses for the structures that have a 

useful life. At this point, a decision has not been made. They may be demolished 

or left standing and removed from service, to be available for some other use in 

the future. 

The size of plant needed was discussed and data was presented for 

population projections and flow projections per capita. 

 Mr. Christopher stated one of the things that they are building into this 

facility is enough capacity in those treatment units to be able to handle any 

tighter discharge limits in the future with minimal change.  

 Commissioner Schwaller stated that we do not know what regulations are 

going to be like in 10 years, we know they will be strict, but it would be difficult to 

design a plant for 10 or 15 years because we don’t know what regulations or 

population will be, and it doesn’t matter what it is going to be because the 

equipment will have to be replaced in 10 to 15 years. 

 Commissioner Musil commented that we are building so we can adapt to 

future changes. 

   Bernie Kitten, Director of Utilities, added that if you oversize and get a 

wastewater treatment facility too big with their biological treatment they don’t 

work as well. 

 Mr. Christopher explained currently the biosolids that come off the plant   

are hauled to fields in thickened liquid form. They are looking for ways to reduce 

2



that water significantly which would reduce the trips to the fields. The advantage 

to this is less trips to the farm fields and the ability to store the biosolids on site.  

Commissioner Meier asked if the biosolids are sold to farmers at a profit, 

and wondered what the benefit is to the City by updating the equipment and 

making the biosolids more of a solid by taking additional water out of it. 

 Roger Moerke, Wastewater Superintendent, responded that we are 

currently hauling basically 98% water which is a lot of loads to the farm fields and 

we don’t have any capacity for storage so this would give us a lot more flexibility 

if we went to cake, which is a de-watered biosolid. He stated it is an expense to 

haul this and we do not get paid for it by the farmer. 

 Mr. Christopher explained that the financing being considered by the City 

is a Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Loan, 20 year amortization, 

2.15% to 2.25% interest fees, no closing costs, financing interest during 

construction and the City is anticipating applying for 100% loan in the amount of 

$30,260,000. 

 Mayor Phelps asked if there was anyone in the audience that had 

questions or comments. 

 There were no public comments. 

 Commissioner Schwaller stated the membrane technology has changed a 

lot in the last 10 years and asked if it is second or third generation. He is 

concerned with longevity and obselesance. He asked if it is possible to think if we 

buy a certain kind of membrane technology it would last 10 to 15 years without 

becoming obsolete. 

 Mr. Christopher commented that HDR has been designing membrane 

plants for more than 15 years and there has been significant improvements in 

membranes. He stated the City should negotiate replacement costs when the 

membranes are purchased.  There is no guarantee that the company will still be 

in business in future years. 

 Bernie Kitten, Utilities Director, stated the City wants to get the latest 

technology.  

3



Chairperson Phelps stated that there were no more questions and that 

concludes the public meeting.  

 

 Kim Rupp, Finance Director, stated that Patty Kettles who is presenting 

the sewer rate study had been delayed and suggested her presentation follow 

the 2016 Budget presentation. 

  

2016 Budget Presentation 
City Manager, Toby Dougherty, reviewed the 2016 Budget with the 

Commissioners giving a brief explanation of various aspects of the budget.  The 

2016 Budget is a balanced budget, contains no additional employees, adequately 

funds reserves, and keeps the mill levy at 25.00.   

At the July 23, 2015 Commission meeting, the Commissioners will be 

requested to set the date for a public hearing for the 2016 Budget to be held 

during the Commission meeting on August 13, 2015. 

 

Sewer Rate Study/Adjustment 
Kim Rupp, Finance Director, stated that environmental restrictions at the 

City sewer treatment facility, aging infrastructure, lack of funding for annual 

sewer capital maintenance repairs and rehabilitation, and insufficient user rates 

prompted the need for a sewer rate study. Springsted, Inc. was contracted to 

conduct a comprehensive study to determine the rate increases needed to 

support the above needs.  

Patty Kettles, Vice President with Springsted, Inc., made a presentation 

outlining the study and its recommendation. The presentation included a series of 

increases during the next few years in order to provide sufficient revenue, 

adequate cash flow, adequate level of cash reserves, and cover the full cost of 

services provided. 

City staff is recommending the monthly sewer base and volumetric user 

rates should be increased 17% August 1, 2015, 15.5% annually 2016-2020 and 

12% in 2021.  

4



Commissioner Jones stated he would like to see other scenarios on the 

rate increase options.  

Commissioner Schwaller stated this is going to be an impossible sell and 

most people don’t have the income to pay for this. 

Commissioner Meier agreed and would like to see other options. 

 While Ms. Kettles updated the spreadsheet with other options, a citizen 

comment was heard. 

 Delores Schmeidler, a resident of Hays, asked who determines the sewer 

charges on private well owners who do not consume City water, but are strictly 

on a private well. She asked why some people pay $26.00 and others pay 

$11.43.  

 City Manager, Toby Dougherty, replied that because we don’t meter the 

amount of water they are using with a water well, we don’t know how much waste 

water they are putting into our system and the rate was set higher. 

 Finance Director, Kim Rupp, stated that in the 1960’s when that rate was 

put into place they tried to use the top end of average usage and arrived at 1300 

cubic feet and when the per capita water use average dropped due to 

conservation, they lowered it to 1000 cubic feet.  He stated an option would be to 

put a meter on her well and we would charge based on her actual usage. 

 City Attorney, John Bird, stated that this was deliberate by the 

Commission when the City went into the water crisis. They wanted to 

disincentivize people from using private wells in the City of Hays because we 

draw from the same aquifer.  

 It was the consensus of the Commission to discuss these flat sewer rates 

at a future work session. 

While this citizen comment was heard, Patty Kettles prepared a few more 

rate increase options for the Commission to review. 

Stan Christopher commented a couple of options are available to spread 

the rate increases out a little longer and reduce the new debt in the first few 

years. 

5



Finance Director, Kim Rupp, stated the August 1st date to increase rates is 

not set in stone and we could present other options and postpone the rate 

increase to September 1, 2015. 

It was the consensus of the Commission to bring this item back for 

discussion at a work session in August for a proposed rate increase effective 

September 1, 2015 after other options are presented. 

 

Other Items for Discussion 
 City Manager, Toby Dougherty, introduced Greg Sund, who recently 

assumed the position of Public Works Director. 

 Commissioner Jones commented the presentations given were very good 

and helpful. He also stated that he has received comments on changing the one 

way streets on 6th and 7th Streets and looks forward to that discussion in the 

future. 

 Commissioner Schwaller commented that he appreciates all the work that 

was put into the presentations given this evening. 

 Commissioner Meier also appreciates the work done on those 

presentations. 

 Commissioner Musil commented that it is a lot of information to take in 

and that they are trying to decide what is best for the community and for the 

future of the community. 

 

Executive Session 
 Henry Schwaller IV moved, James Meier seconded, that the Governing 

Body recess to executive session at 10:08 p.m. for five minutes to discuss union 

negotiations. The executive session included the Commissioners, the City 

Manager, and the City Attorney. K.S.A. 75-4319 authorizes the use of executive 

session to discuss the topics stated in the motion.  

    

 

 

6



Vote: Ayes: Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     James Meier 

     Henry Schwaller IV 

     Lance Jones 

 No action was taken during executive session. 

 

The work session was adjourned at 10:13 p.m. 

 

Submitted by: ______________________________________________ 

Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 
 

City of Hays, Kansas 
Wastewater Facility Plan Public Meeting 

July 16, 2015 
Attendance Sheet 

 
 
 
Public and Press 
Delores Schmeidler 
Scott Simpson 
Chris Miller 
Ron Mellick 
Karen LaPierre – Hays Daily News 
Becky Kiser – Eagle Communications 
Katie Miller – Burns & McDonnell 
 
City Commissioners 
Eber Phelps 
Shaun Musil 
Henry Schwaller IV 
James Meier 
Lance Jones 
 
City Staff 
Toby Dougherty – City Manager 
Kim Rupp – Finance Director 
Shane Scranton – Intern (City Manager’s Office) 
John Braun – Asst. Director of Public Works 
Greg Sund – Director of Public Works 
Johnny O’Connor – Asst. Director of Utilities 
Bernie Kitten – Director of Utilities 
Roger Moerke – Wastewater Superintendent 
Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 
Andrea Windholz – Executive Assistant 
John T. Bird – City Attorney 
Shawn Swift – Wastewater Plant Operator 
 
Consultants 
Stan Christopher – HDR 
Matt Say – HDR 
Patty Kettles – Springsted, Inc. 

8



© 2014 HDR, all rights reserved.

July 16, 2015

Public Meeting

City of Hays, 
Kansas

Wastewater 
Treatment Plant 
Improvements

9



 Aging Wastewater Treatment Facilities

 Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE)

o Lower ammonia limits to protect stream ecology

o Lower phosphorus and nitrogen limits to protect local and 
national water quality

o Potentially lower disinfection limits to protect recreational 
and drinking water from bacteria and viruses 

Purpose of Project

10



 Original Construction – 1953

 Major Upgrades
o Trickling Filters – 1967
o Activated Sludge System – 1992

Aging Facilities

11



Hays Plant - 1953

12



Hays Plant - 1967

13



Hays Plant - 1992

14



Hays Plant - Current

15



Facility Assessment

16



 Constructed in 1967
 Station contains influent coarse 

screening, multiple pumping facilities 
and grit removal

 Two-story reinforced concrete below 
grade

 Single story masonry superstructure 

Influent Pumping Station

 Access to pump rooms is not 
compliant with current building codes

 Pump rooms otherwise usable for 
reuse

 Sequencing of construction 
modifications could create challenges 
for reuse of this structure

17



Influent Pumping Station (Headworks)
 Grit Classifier
 Installed in 1967
 Breaks down frequently
 Visible deterioration
 Based on age, required maintenance, and level of deterioration, 

reuse is not recommended

18



 Constructed in 1992
 No significant settlement was observed 
 Air piping should be repainted
 Structure could be reused
 Condition of diffuser membranes was 

not observed, but likely require 
replacement

Activated Sludge Basins

 Anoxic Mixers
 Installed in 1992
 Motors and bearing have been 

replaced on some units
 Equipment could be considered for 

reuse
 The electrical distribution to the east 

basin equipment is unreliable and is 
recommended not to be reused

19



 The building was constructed in 
1992 

 No significant deterioration of any 
of the structural elements was 
noted

 Structure could be reused

Blower Building

 Blowers installed in 1992, and 
rebuilt from 2002 to 2007 

 Only minor defects were noted

 Blowers could be considered for 
reuse

 Electrical systems in the Blower 
Building are in good condition 
and could be reused 

20



Structures Not Available for Reuse

21



Determine Flows and 
Loadings through 2038

22



Flows and Loadings

23



Existing Population Data
• Annual rate of growth of Hays total population between 1990 and 2000 

was 1.17%
• Annual rate of growth of Hays total population between 2000 and 2010 

was 0.25%
• Fort Hays State University On-Campus Student Population remained 

fairly constant between 1995 and 2014

24



Population Projections - Hays 2012 
Comprehensive Plan

• Assumed permanent(1) population growth rate of 1% per year per City’s 
2012 Comprehensive Plan

• Assumed Fort Hays State University reaches stated goal of on-campus 
student population of 7,000

• Assumed population of the outside sewer districts remained constant at 
700 people

(1) Permanent defined as other than university population

25



Population Projections – Linear Best-Fit Method
• University provided on-campus student population data from 1995 to 

2014; assumed constant on-campus student population prior to 1995
• Linear Best-Fit Method was applied to the permanent(1) population
• Assumed Fort Hays State University reaches stated goal of on-campus 

student population of 7,000
• Assumed population of the outside sewer districts remained constant at 

700 people

(1) Permanent defined as other than university population

26



Population Projection Based on 10-Year 
Period of 2000 to 2010

• FHSU was annexed by the City of Hays in 1995
• The impact of the annexation on the population growth is unknown
• Population projection based on 10-year period of 2000 to 2010 was 

conducted
• Assumed Fort Hays State University reaches stated goal of on-

campus student population of 7,000
• Assumed population of the outside sewer districts remained constant 

at 700 people

27



Population Projections - Summary

Projection Method 2010 2020 2030 2038
Method 1 – 2012 Comprehensive 
Plan – 1% Annual Growth

21,200 25,100 28,900 30,500

Method 2 – Linear Method Based 
on 1980 to 2010 U.S. Census Data 
and University Goals

21,200 23,300 26,900 28,100

Method 3 – Based on 2000 to 2010 
U.S. Census Data and University 
Goals

21,200 23,800 25,500 26,000

28



Flow and Loadings – Flow Per Capita

29



 Hays WWTP is currently permitted for 2.8 MGD Average Flow
Flow and Loadings Projections – Flow Per Capita

Population Projection 
Method

Projected 2038 
Population

Average Plant Influent Flow (MGD)

80 gpd/ 
capita

85 gpd/ 
capita

90 gpd/ 
capita

2012 Comprehensive 
Plan - 1% Annual 
Growth

30,600 2.4 2.6 2.8

Linear Method Based 
on 1980 to 2010 U.S 
Census Data and 
University Goals

28,100 2.2 2.4 2.5

Based on 2000 to 2010 
U.S Census Data and 
University Goals

26,000 2.1 2.2 2.3

30



Project Design Criteria

Loading

Average Day 
Design Value 

(mg/l)

Maximum 
Month Design 
Value (mg/l)

Influent BOD 290 320
Influent TSS 290 400
Influent NH4 40 45
Influent TP 7 8
Influent TKN 60 65

Flow
Design Value 

(MGD)
Average Daily Flow 2.5
Peak Daily Flow 3.8
Peak Hour Flow 7.5*
Maximum Month Flow 3.1
*Matches current 3:1 peak to average flow capacity 
(Influent Pump Station) at the existing plant. 

31



KDHE Effluent Treatment Levels
Impairment Current Limits New Permit 

Limits
Probable

Future Limits
BOD5 mg/l 
(Mar – Oct)

25 25 25

BOD5 mg/l
(Nov - Feb)

20 20 20

TSS mg/l 30 30 30

Ammonia mg/l
Daily Max
Avg Month

None
4.2 – 13.1

2.86 – 8.97
0.71 – 2.18

2.86 – 8.97
0.71 – 2.18

Total Nitrogen mg/l None 8 5
Total Phosphorus mg/l None 1.5 0.5

E. Coli c/100 ml 262 262 Unknown

32



Evaluate Treatment 
Alternatives

33



 Alt. 1 – Conventional Single Basin with Phased 
Nitrification/Denitrification

 Alt. 2 – Sequencing Batch Reactor (SBR)

 Alt. 3 – Conventional Separate Stage (Diffused or 
Mechanical)

 Alt. 4 – Integrated Fixed-Film Activated Sludge 
(IFAS)

 Alt. 5 – Membrane Bioreactor (MBR)

Secondary Treatment Alternatives

34



Secondary Treatment Alternative 1 –
Conventional Single Basin with Phased NDN

35



Advantages
 Reduced footprint

 Lower capital cost 

Secondary Treatment Alternative 1 –
Conventional Single Basin Phased NDN

Disadvantages
 Nitrification/Denitrification

cycles are phased

 Operator must balance 
phased operation

 Higher Methanol usage for 
TN removal

36



Secondary Treatment Alternative 2 – SBR

37



Advantages
 Small footprint, eliminates 

the need for final 
clarification

Secondary Treatment Alternative 2 – SBR
Disadvantages
 More complex control scheme 
 Anaerobic, NDN cycles are 

phased
 Less control of phases during 

increased flows
 Additional processes for TN 

removal

38



Biological Treatment Conventional 5-Stage

39



Secondary Treatment Alternative 3B –
Conventional Separate Stage - Mechanical

40



Advantages
 Nitrification/Denitrification phases 

are separate

 Simplified operation

 TN and TP removal to low levels

 Reduced aeration equipment 
maintenance

Secondary Treatment Alternative 3B –
Conventional Separate Stage - Mechanical

Disadvantages
 Large footprint

 Higher capital cost

41



Biological Treatment IFAS 5-Stage

42



Advantages

 Nitrification/Denitrification phases 
are separate

 Simplified operation

 TN and TP removal to low levels

 Reduced diffuser equipment 
maintenance

 Small footprint

 Potential for reuse of existing 
aeration basins

Secondary Treatment Alternative 4 – IFAS

Disadvantages

 Higher headloss

 Potential media loss

 Requires basin outage to 
repair aeration equipment 

 Media cost

 Higher operating cost

43



Biological Treatment MBR 5-Stage

44



Advantages
 Small footprint
 Nitrification/Denitrification

phases are separate
 TN and TP removal to low 

levels
 Effluent reuse water quality
 Final Clarifiers and Filters not 

required

Secondary Treatment Alternative 5 – MBR

Disadvantages

 Equipment complexity

 High capital and O&M cost 

45



 Modify existing tertiary filtration basins
o Traveling Bridge Sand Filter to be replaced in existing building

Tertiary Filtration – Improvements/Design Criteria

46



New UV Disinfection System

47



 Modify existing activated sludge basins

Solids Processing – Digestion/Thickening
– Improvements/Design Criteria

Parameter Value
Sludge Production

Average Solids Loading at 2.5 MGD flow (lbs/day) 4,240

Maximum Monthly Solids loading (lbs/day) 5,791

Sludge Yield 0.7

Digestion/Thickening

PSRP Days Required 40 @ 200C

Concentration (%) 1.5

Available Volume (gallons) 976,500

Days of Digestion @ 1.7 MGD (Includes 10 days in biological treatment basins) 52

Days of Digestion @ 2.5 MGD (Includes 10 days in biological treatment basins) 40

Minimum Mixing Required (scfm) 2,611

Air Available from Existing Blowers (scfm) 3 @ 1,590 each

48



 Summary of Improvements
• Transfer pumps from Aerobic Digesters
• Polymer System
• Screw Press or Centrifuge

Solids Processing – Solids Pumping and 
Dewatering – Improvements/Design Criteria

49



Dewatered Biosolids Application Truck

50



Site Plan –
Conventional 5-Stage

51



Site Plan –
IFAS 5-Stage

52



Site Plan –
MBR 5-Stage

53



Alternative 1 -
Conventional 

Separate Stage with 
Secondary Clarifiers

Alternative 2 -IFAS 
with Secondary 

Clarifiers

Alternative 3 -
Conventional 

Separate Stage with 
MBRs

Design-Build Estimated GMP
Influent Pump Station $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Headworks $1,480,000 $1,480,000 $2,050,000
Secondary Treatment $4,870,000 $5,650,000 $7,830,000
Secondary Clarifiers $1,320,000 $1,320,000 N/A
RAS/WAS Pump Station $440,000 $440,000 N/A
UV Disinfection $1,370,000 $1,370,000 $930,000
Tertiary Filters - Rehab of Existing $1,040,000 $1,040,000 N/A
Chemical Storage and Feed System $350,000 $350,000 $350,000
Reclaimed Water Storage Basins $230,000 $230,000 $230,000
Aerobic Digestors $500,000 $500,000 $500,000
Biosolids Dewatering - Screw Press/ Centrifuge $750,000 $750,000 $750,000
Administration and Lab Building $480,000 $480,000 $480,000
Generator $400,000 $400,000 $400,000
Subtotal $14,230,000 $15,010,000 $14,520,000
Electrical I&C (20%) $2,850,000 $3,010,000 $2,910,000
Site Piping (11%) $1,570,000 $1,660,000 $1,600,000
Finish Grading, Seeding and Paving (5%) $720,000 $760,000 $730,000
Subtotal $19,370,000 $20,440,000 $19,760,000

Capital Cost Estimates

54



Alternative 1 -
Conventional 

Separate Stage with 
Secondary Clarifiers

Alternative 2 -IFAS 
with Secondary 

Clarifiers

Alternative 3 -
Conventional 

Separate Stage with 
MBRs

Design-Build Estimated GMP
Subtotal $19,370,000 $20,440,000 $19,760,000
General Conditions (13%) $2,520,000 $2,660,000 $2,570,000
Subtotal $21,890,000 $23,100,000 $22,330,000
Contingency (15%) $3,290,000 $3,470,000 $3,350,000
Engineering (10%) $2,190,000 $2,310,000 $2,230,000
Subtotal - Design-Build Estimated GMP $27,370,000 $28,880,000 $27,910,000

City Capital Costs
Dewatered Biosolids Truck $180,000 $180,000 $180,000
Owner's Representative Services $1,710,000 $1,710,000 $1,710,000
Interest During Construction $720,000 $760,000 $780,000
Subtotal - City Capital Costs $2,610,000 $2,650,000 $2,670,000
Total - Project Capital Costs $29,980,000 $31,530,000 $30,580,000

Operation and Maintenance Costs (2018) $2,336,200 $2,464,100 $2,419,000

Cost Estimates (Continued)

55



Net Present Value (NPV)

Item Description

Alternative 1 -
Conventional 

Separate Stage with 
Secondary Clarifiers

Alternative 2 -IFAS 
with Secondary 

Clarifiers

Alternative 3 -
Conventional 

Separate Stage with 
MBRs

Capital Cost NPV $29,980,000 $31,530,000 $30,580,000
Operation and Maintenance Cost 
NPV $41,902,000 $44,196,000 $43,387,000

Total NPV $71,882,000 $75,726,000 $73,967,000

• Cost Year Basis:  2018
• Escalation Rate:  1.9%
• Interest (Discount Rate):  3.1%

56



Evaluation Factor

Category 
Weight 
Factor

Criteria 
Weight 
Factor

Weight 
Percentage

Alternatives
5-Stage 

Aeration Ditch 
with 

Secondary 
Clarifiers

IFAS with 
Secondary 
Clarifers

4-Stage 
Aeration 
with MBR

Economic 60%
1 Capital Cost 3 18.0% 5 4.5 4
2 Operating and Maintenance 

(O&M) Cost 3 18.0% 5 4 3
3 Staffing/Operational 

Complexity 2 12.0% 5 5 4
4 Constructability/Phasing 2 12.0% 3 3 5

60% 2.76 2.49 2.34
Social 10%

1 Ease of Permitting 2 5.0% 5 4 5
2 Public Perception 2 5.0% 3 3 5

10% 0.40 0.35 0.50
Environmental 30%

1 Performance Reliability 3 10.0% 3 3 5
2 Proven Experience 3 10.0% 5 4.5 3.5
3 Reuse 3 10.0% 4 4 5

100% 30% 1.20 1.15 1.35
Total Score 100% 4.36 3.99 4.19

Triple Bottom Line Analysis

Scores:  5 = Most Favorable, 1 = Least 
Favorable

57



Recommendations
 Construct 2.5 MGD Wastewater Treatment Plant

o New Influent Pump Station
o New Headworks
o New Activated Sludge Facilities Using:

• Alternative 3; or
• Alternative 5

o Rehabilitated Existing Tertiary Filter
o New UV Disinfection
o Modify Existing Activated Sludge Facilities to Serve as Biosolids

Digestion/Thickening
o New Biosolids Dewatering Using:

• Screw Press; or
• Centrifuge

o New Dewatered Biosolids Land Application Truck
o Convert Existing Trickling Filter to Effluent Reuse Storage

58



 Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Loan 

o 20 Year Amortization
o 2.15 – 2.25% Interest/Fees
o No Closing Costs
o Finance Interest During Construction

o City Will Apply for 100% Loan in the Amount of $30,260,000

Financing Considered by City

59



Design-Build Guaranteed Maximum Price $27,620,000

Dewatered Biosolids Truck $     180,000

Owner’s Representative Services $  1,710,000

Interest During Construction $     750,000

Total Loan Costs $30,260,000

Capital Budget

60



Estimated Annual Operation and Maintenance 
Costs - 2018

Cost Item 
Salaries $523,750
Professional Services 33,150
Other Contract Services 197,400
Uniforms 5,100
Equipment Replacement 404,000
Communication 3,300
Travel and Training 5,100
Office Supplies 700
General Supplies & 
Materials 31,500
Utilities 401,500
Chemicals 96,000
Repair & Maintenance 34,700
Collection System Repair 300,000
Sewer Capital Maintenance 300,000
Operating Expenses $2,336,200

Investment Income ($14,700)
Existing Debt Service 147,500
New Debt Service 1,895,800
Other 25,000
Transfer Out 454,600
Non-Operating Expenses $2,508,200 

Total Annual Costs $4,844,400
 

61



Revenue Increases Projected by Springsted Study 
for the Period of 

August 2015 through 2021
Period Beginning Revenue Increase
  
August 1, 2015 17% 
  
January 1, 2016 15.5% 
  
January 1, 2017 15.5% 
  
January 1, 2018 15.5% 
  
January 1, 2019 15.5% 
  
January 1, 2020 15.5% 
  
January 1, 2021 12% 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

62



Projected Impacts on Residential Users

 
Monthly User 

Charge 

Period 400 cf/mo 

Current $11.44 

August, 2015 $13.38 

2016 $15.46 

2017 $17.86 

2018 $20.62 

2019 $23.82 

2020 $27.51 

2021 $30.81 

 

63



Agencies Contacted Status
Kansas Dept. of Health & Environment Clearance granted

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Services Clearance granted
U.S. Department of Agriculture Clearance granted
Kansas State Historical Society Clearance granted

Kansas Biological Survey Clearance granted
KS Dept. of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism Clearance granted

Kansas Corporation Commission Clearance granted
Kansas Water Office Clearance granted

KS Department of Agriculture A permit for fill within a floodplain (without defined 
floodway) will be required.

Kansas Geological Survey Clearance granted
U.S. Army Corp of Engineers Clearance granted
KS Department of Agriculture Clearance granted

North Central Regional Planning Comm Clearance is not required from this agency
Wichita-Sedg. Co. Metro Area Planning Clearance is not required from this agency

Mid-America Regional Council Clearance is not required from this agency
Mo-Kan regional Council Clearance is not required from this agency

Topeka Planning Dept Clearance is not required from this agency

South Central KS Economic Dev. Dist Clearance is not required from this agency
Southeast KS. Reg. Planning Comm Clearance is not required from this agency

NW Kansas Planning & Develop Comm Clearance is not required from this agency

Environmental Clearance Letters

64



Schedule
  
Facility Plan       

  Start Date                                           April 2, 2015
  Complete Draft Facility Plan                            July 7, 2015
  Public Meeting - Draft Facility Plan                           July 16,2015
  City Review                                 July 9, 2015 thru July 17, 2015
  KDHE Review                            July 20, 2015 thru August 6, 2015
  Public Hearing - Final Facility Plan                             August 13, 2015
  City Commission Approval          August 13, 2015

Design-Builder Procurement
  Start Date                                          July 2015
  Complete Selection of Design-Builder                      December 2015

Completion of 90% Design and Development of GMP
  Start Date                                           January 2016
  Complete 90% Design and Development of 

GMP                                   
 May 2016

Construction 
  Start Date                                           May 2016
  Complete Construction                                    December 2017

Optimization of Operations  
  Start Date                                           January 2018
  Complete Optimization of 

Operations                                   
 June 2018

 

65



Questions?

66



Commission	Work	Session	Agenda		
Memo		

	
From:	 	 	 	 Toby	Dougherty	–	City	Manager	 	
	
Work	Session:		 	 	 August	6,	2015	 	
	
Subject:	 	 	 NWK	Investments	Request	for	Economic	
	 	 	 Development	Incentives		 	
	
Person(s)	Responsible:		 Aaron	White		

Director		
Ellis	County	Coalition	for	Economic	Development		

	
	 	 	 James	Millensifer	

Vice	President	of	Operations	
Chance	Management	

	

Summary		

The	developer,	NWK	Investments,	LLC,	wishes	to	develop	23.3	acres	of	land	at	the	

NW	corner	of	230th	Avenue	and	55th	St.			The	developer	plans	to	invest	up	to	$28	

million	to	create	a	travel	plaza,	restaurants,	and	hotel	on	the	property.		It	is	not	in	

the	city	limits	and	is	not	currently	served	by	any	municipal	infrastructure.		The	

developer	wishes	to	utilize	a	Tax	Increment	Finance	(TIF)	district	and	a	Community	

Improvement	District	(CID)	to	help	finance	the	project	and	create	the	necessary	

utility	infrastructure.		Incentives	requested	may	amount	to	$21	million	over	22	

years.		The	developer	has	offered	to	finance,	construct,	and	oversize	the	necessary	

water,	sewer,	and	street	infrastructure.			

City	staff	evaluated	the	proposal	and	determined	that	is	would	cost	$94k	annually	to	

provide	general	services	to	the	area	and	cover	the	long‐term	street	liability.		

Revenues	for	City	of	Hays	to	offset	these	costs	are	projected	to	be	$94k	the	first	year,	

increasing	in	future	years.		Utility	revenue	from	the	proposed	development	would	

not	be	sufficient	to	cover	the	capital	costs	of	the	infrastructure,	leaving	an	annual	

67



shortfall	of	$20k.		However,	there	are	added	benefits	to	the	community	at	large	with	

the	proposed	water	main	improvements.		The	proposed	development	will	also	

create	additional	water	sales	tax	and	transient	guest	tax	revenues.		City	staff	

recommends	approval	of	the	request	to	utilize	economic	development	incentives.			

The	Project	

NWK	Investments,	LLC	wishes	to	develop	23.3	acres	of	land,	creating	a	travel	plaza,	

restaurants,	and	a	hotel.		The	developer	is	paying	$1.5	million,	or	$64k	an	acre	for	

the	property.		According	to	the	developer,	the	first	phase	will	consist	of	93,000	

square	feet	of	retail	space.		Projected	taxable	revenues	are:	$7.5	million	year	one,	

and	$10	million	year	five.		The	developer	has	offered	to	secure	financing	for,	install	

to	City	of	Hays’	specifications,	and	oversize,	all	public	infrastructure	needed	to	serve	

the	development.		The	project	is	expected	to	create	69	full‐time	and	46	part‐time	

jobs.		According	to	a	WSU	cost‐benefit	analysis,	the	project	carries	a	133%	ROI	and	a	

2.33	benefit	cost	ratio	for	the	City	of	Hays.	

Infrastructure	Requirements	

The	area	is	not	in	the	city	limits	and	is	not	served	by	any	City	of	Hays	infrastructure.		

In	order	to	serve	the	property,	the	intersection	of	230th	and	55th	Streets	would	need	

to	be	rebuilt	at	an	estimated	cost	of	$1.5	million.		Sanitary	sewer	would	need	to	

connect	to	the	current	system	via	boring	under	Interstate	70.		The	estimated	cost	for	

this	is	$900k.		Water	would	need	to	be	conveyed	two	miles	from	the	55th	St	tower	

and	looped	into	the	system	south	of	Interstate	70.		Estimated	cost	for	this	is	$1.5	

million.		It	is	impractical	to	bring	water	under	the	interstate	from	the	south	as	it	is	a	

different	system	than	the	55th	St	tower	and	would	require	new	pumping	

infrastructure,	creating	a	high	annual	cost	(energy)	to	pump	the	water	to	the	

property.		Looping	the	line	to	the	system	south	of	I‐70	has	benefits	to	the	city	at	

large.		The	area	immediately	to	the	south	of	I‐70	is	the	furthest	from	the	distribution	

pumps	and	the	highest	elevation	in	that	system.		Therefore,	a	lot	of	energy	is	

expended	to	move	the	water	there.		There	are	also	issues	with	pressure	and	water	

flow	in	that	portion	of	the	system.		Looping	with	the	55th	St	tower	would	help	

provide	pressure	and	flow.			

The	total	infrastructure	estimate	to	serve	the	property	is	$3.9	million.			

68



The	developer	has	agreed	to	secure	financing	for	all	public	infrastructure.		In	

addition	to	financing	the	improvements,	the	developer	has	agreed	to	engineer,	and	

have	constructed,	all	improvements,	and	that	the	improvements	will	be	built	to	city	

specifications.		The	developer	has	agreed	that	the	infrastructure	will	be	oversized	at	

no	cost	to	the	city.			Lastly,	the	developer	agrees	that	City	Staff	will	approve	the	

construction	and	inspection	engineer,	as	well	as	the	final	design.			

Economic	Incentives	Requested	

NWK	Investments	is	requesting	the	utilization	of	two	economic	development	

incentives.		Each	are	explained	below.	

CID	

The	developer	wishes	to	utilize	a	CID	to	help	offset	eligible	development	costs.		The	

developer	would	like	to	implement	a	2%	CID	for	22	years,	the	maximum	allowed	by	

state	statute	and	the	City’s	Economic	Development	Policy.		According	to	revenue	

projections,	the	2%	CID	would	generate	approximately	$8	million	over	the	22	years	

from	the	proposed	development.			

The	CID	petition	proposes	to	include	five	parcels.		They	are:	the	parcel	that	will	

comprise	the	development,	as	well	as	the	two	parcels	immediately	south	of	

Celebration	Community	Church,	and	the	Doonan	parcels	to	the	west	and	North	of	

the	Peterbilt	dealership.		A	visual	is	included	with	this	memo.		The	developer	has	

identified	$14.5	million	in	CID	eligible	costs.		It	is	the	developer’s	intent	to	recover	

as	much	of	the	CID	eligible	expenses	as	possible	assuming	the	other	four	parcels	

develop.			

TIF	

The	Developer	wishes	to	create	a	TIF	district	to	recover	up	to	$7	million	in	TIF	

eligible	expenses	(finance	and	interest	costs	included).		The	developer	wishes	to	

keep	100%	of	the	City	of	Hays,	Ellis	County,	and	USD	489	property	tax.		It	is	

estimated	the	TIF	district	would	be	in	place	for	15‐20	years	depending	on	the	

annual	sales,	property	tax	valuations,	and	actual	cost	of	improvements.	

Compliance	with	Economic	Development	Policy	

The	application	for	economic	incentives	is	in	compliance	with	the	City	of	Hays’	

Economic	Development	Policy.	With	regard	to	the	“but	for”	provision	of	the	policy,	

69



the	developer	states	the	project	will	not	happen	without	the	incentives	being	

requested.			

Financial	Bottom	Line	

*	Financial	analysis	is	based	solely	upon	the	proposal	being	presented	and	does	

not	take	into	account	future	development	in	the	TIF	and	CID	district.		Future	

development	is	possible,	but	is	not	guaranteed.	

It	is	expected	to	cost	$72k	annually	to	provide	general	services	to	the	area.		The	

annual	street	liability	being	assumed	by	the	city	at	large	is	$22k.		This	creates	a	total	

annual	liability	of	$94k.		Assuming	100%	of	the	City’s	property	taxes	are	diverted,	

revenues	received	by	the	City	of	Hays	will	be	$94k	the	first	year	and	increasing	in	

subsequent	years.			

City	staff	also	evaluated	the	economics	of	assumed	liability	for	water	and	sewer	

infrastructure.		The	annual	liability	of	extending	the	water	system	is	$21k.		Based	on	

projected	water	usage,	the	development	would	contribute	$5k	annually	towards	

capital	replacement	and	maintenance,	resulting	in	a	shortfall	of	$16k	annually.		The	

annual	liability	of	extending	the	sewer	system	is	$9k.		Based	on	projected	usage,	the	

development	would	contribute	$5k	annually	towards	capital	replacement	and	

maintenance,	resulting	in	a	shortfall	of	$4k	annually.	

	

Net	bottom	line	

	 	 	 	 Revenues		 	 Liabilities	 	 Net	gain/loss	

Sales	Tax	 	 	 		$94,000	

Utility	Capital		 	 		$10,000	

Transient	Guest	Tax	 	 $110,000	

Water	Sales	Tax	 	 		$37,500	

General	Services	 	 	 	 	 		$72,000	

Street	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		$22,000	

Water/Sewer	liability	 	 	 	 		$30,000	

	 	 	 	 $251,500	 	 $124,000	 	 $127,500	

	

70



Pros	and	Cons	

Pros	

 Creation	and	oversizing	of	public	infrastructure	

o Developer	assumes	financing	and	construction	risk	

 City	does	not	manage	infrastructure	project	

 Future	property	and	sales	tax	revenues	(15‐20	years,	after	TIF	debt	is	paid)	

 Looping	the	water	system	

o Looping	the	system	has	a	benefit	to	the	city	at	large,	and	staff	has	

wished	to	do	this	for	many	years.		However,	the	cost	could	not	be	

justified.		The	annual	liability	of	$16k	created	by	the	project	is	

something	that	staff	feels	is	worth	the	investment	given	the	benefits	of	

looping	the	system.			

 New	sales	taxes	

o $94k	–	General	Fund	

o $37.5k	–	Water	Sales	Tax	

 Transient	Guest	Tax	of	$110k	

 Potential	for	additional	development,	and	increased	revenues,	once	

infrastructure	is	in	place	

 Risk	–	The	financial	risk	for	infrastructure	is	assumed	by	the	developer.	

Cons	

 Cost	to	provide	services	account	for	a	significant	portion	of	new	general	fund	

sales	tax	revenues	

 Assumed	water	and	sewer	infrastructure	liability	higher	than	projected	

revenues	

 Risk	–	The	City	is	assuming	the	infrastructure	and	general	service	liability.		If	

the	area	doesn’t	develop	as	planned,	revenues	may	not	be	sufficient	to	cover.	

Details	to	Consider	Moving	Forward	

If	the	Commission	is	to	consider	moving	forward	with	the	request,	the	following	

items	need	to	be	considered:	

71



 There	are	five	parcels	identified	in	the	CID	petition.		It	is	staff’s	

recommendation	that	all	five	of	these	parcels	be	annexed	into	the	City	of	

Hays	to	ensure	orderly	development.	

 The	five	parcels	mentioned	above	are	currently	in	Trego	County	RWD	#2	

territory.		It	is	the	recommendation	of	staff	that	all	five	properties	be	

released	from	the	territory	so	the	City	can	serve	with	water	when	they	

develop.		Staff	is	already	working	on	this.	

 The	developer	alludes	to	a	possible	KDOT	grant	for	the	rebuilding	of	the	55th	

and	230th	intersection.		This	reference	is	to	a	discussion	the	developer	had	

with	Ellis	County	and	KDOT	officials	about	a	possible	grant.		City	staff	has	not	

been	part	of	this	discussion	and	has	no	plans	to	seek	a	grant	to	rebuild	the	

intersection.			

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:  John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works 
 
Work Session: August 6, 2015  
 
Subject: S&W Alley Pavement – Benefit District Resolution 
 
Person(s)  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Responsible: Greg Sund, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
Bids were received for Alley Pavement Improvements on June 30, 2015.  Bids received 
exceeded the total project cost included in the original petition submitted by the adjacent 
property owners.  The petitioners feels the project costs are representative of the current 
market conditions and wants to proceed with the project; therefore, they have submitted a new 
petition with a total project cost that reflects the higher construction cost.  This memo deals 
with accepting the new petition and passing a new resolution reauthorizing the improvements 
at the higher total project cost.  A separate agenda items addresses award of bid for 
construction.  
 

Background  
Don Bickle, Jr., owner of S&W supply contacted City staff about paving the alley between 7th 
and 8th Street just west of Allen Street adjacent to their place of business.  Mr. Bickle 
coordinated with other property owners within the benefit district to gain their support.  The 
Kansas Works Job Center is adjacent to the alley, but not included in the benefit district since 
that property is owned by the State of Kansas.  A map showing the proposed benefit district 
is attached.   In November, the City passed a resolution authorizing the improvements with 
the cost to be assessed to property owners within the benefit district based on lineal footage 
fronting the alley to be paid off in 10 years.  Also at that time, an Engineering Service 
Agreement was entered with Harvey Ruder for engineering services. 
 

Discussion 
Bids for this project were opened on June 30, 2015 with bids coming from two (2) 
bidders: APAC and J Corp.  APAC submitted the low bid in the amount of $61,261.90.   
 
Summary of Bids 
    Engineer’s   
    Estimate  APAC   J Corp 
TOTAL (Alley Pavement) $66,346.50  $61,261.90  $62,859.80 
 
A detailed tabulation of bids is attached. 

177



 
The low bid price exceeding the original petition amount; however, the petitioners feel the 
project costs are representative of the current market conditions and wants to proceed with the 
project.  Therefore, they have submitted a new petition with a total project cost that reflects the 
higher construction cost.  The signed petition and a new resolution repealing Resolution 2014-
025 are attached.  
 
The low bid exceeded the original petition amount but did not exceed the engineer’s estimate 
of cost.  The original petition amount was based on an estimate the petitioner received from a 
local contractor.  The scope of the project designed and bid varied somewhat from the original 
estimate in that the alley entrance needed reconstruction as well. 
  

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
Estimated total Project Cost: 
 
Engineering  $  4,900.00 
Construction   $61,261.90 
Bond & Issuance $  3,500.00 
Contingency  $      338.10  
TOTAL  $70,000.00 
 
There is no City Share for any costs associated with this project. 
 
The developer is financing the improvements through the creation of a special benefit 
district.  The City’s Development Policy allows 100% of the cost of this project to be 
assessed to adjacent property owners over a period of 10 years.   
 
The estimated $70,000 to be special assessed would be bonded. 
 

Options 
Options include the following: 

• Adopt and Approve a Resolution repealing Res. 2014-025 and authorizing the 
improvements with the updated project cost of $70,000. 

• Provide alternate direction to staff 
• Do nothing. 

  
Recommendation 

Staff recommends adopting and approving the Resolution. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve Resolution authorizing the creation of a special benefit district for construction 
of alley pavement between 7th and 8th Street just west of Allen Street to be paid with a 
Special Benefit District. 

 

178



Supporting Documentation 
Location Maps 
Resolution  
Signed Petition 
Excerpt from November 25, 2014 City Commission Meeting Minutes 

179



3

2

5

4

12

11

13

6

7

20

10

9

11

5

14

13

12

8

7

6

9

10

24

28

30

36

34

32

33

35

31

29

23

21

27

25

15

19

17

13

11

13

5

3

1

7

9

11

15

10

6

8

4

14

12

2

29

26

21

25

27

23

18

22

20

24

30

28

34

31

35

33

32

36

16

17

19

1

8

12

13

11

10

15

17

16

14

18

9

8

4

2

6

12

13

11

10

15

17

16

14

18

9

1

5

3

7

8

4

2

6

12

13

11

10

15

17

16

14

18

9

1

5

3

7

17

16

14

18

8

4

2

6

12

13

11

10

15

17

16

14

18

9

1

5

3

7

8

4

2

6

12

10

16

14

18

4

2

1

5

3

7

8

4

2

6

12

13

11

10

15

9

1

5

3

7

1

2

3

4

4

6

8

18

16

14

17

15

13

14

12

1

2

3

5

7

11

13

7

3

1

5

11

9

15

13

17

5

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

19

17

13

15

11

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

25

23

21

32

33

34

35

36

27

28

29

30

31

S

A

N

T

A

 

F

E

E

 

8

T

H

 

S

T

E

 

6

T

H

 

S

T

E

 

7

T

H

 

S

T

A

L

L

E

N

 

S

T

P

I

N

E

 

S

T

E

 

5

T

H

 

S

T

A

B
C

D

E

F
G

City of Hays, Public Works Dept
October 2014
HP Wilson Addition
Alley Pavement Benefit District

Benefit District
City Limit

LOCATION
27th St

13th St

8th St

V
in

e 
S

t

City of Hays, Ellis County, KansasPavement

180



 

181



S&W Alley Benefit District 
 

 
Looking West 

 

 
Looking East 

182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



 1 

(Published in the HAYS DAILY NEWS on _________________ ___, 2015) 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 
A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 

CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, MAKING 

CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND AUTHORIZING AND 

PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE IMPROVEMENTS IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS. 

 
 WHEREAS, a petition was filed with the City Clerk for the City of Hays, Kansas (the “City”) on 
_________ ___, 2015, proposing certain improvements pursuant to K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq. and 
particularly K.S.A. 12-6a04(c) (the “Petition”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Petition sets forth:  (a) the general nature of the proposed improvements; (b) the 
estimated or probable cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent of the proposed improvement 
district to be assessed for the cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the proposed method of assessment; 
(e) the proposed apportionment of the cost between the improvement district and the City at large; and (f) a 
request that such improvements be made without notice and hearing as required by K.S.A. 12-6a04(a); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City hereby finds and determines that said petition is 
sufficient. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IS RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

HAYS, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 Section 1.  The Governing Body hereby finds determines that it is necessary and advisable to make 
the following improvements: 
 

(a) The nature of the improvements are as follows: 
 

The paving and other necessary and appropriate improvements of an alley 
located to the west of Allen Street, between East 7th Street and East 8th Street. 
 

(the “Improvements”). 
 

(b) The estimated cost of the Improvements is: 
 

Seventy thousand dollars ($70,000) plus costs of issuance and plus costs of 
interest on any temporary financing.  

 
(c) The boundaries of the improvement district to be assessed are: 

 
Lots 2 to 15, Lot 17, the eastern 50 feet of Lot 1, and the western 25 feet of Lot 16, all in 
Block 4 of the HP Wilson Addition, City of Hays, Ellis County, Kansas 
 
(the “Improvement District”). 

           
(d) The method of assessment shall be: 

 
 Equally per front foot for each lot in the Improvement District. 

190



 2 

 
(e) The apportionment of cost between the Improvement District and the City at large is: 

 
One-hundred percent (100%) of the cost of the Improvements shall be assessed to 
the Improvement District and no costs shall be paid by the City-at-large. 

 
 Section 2.  The Governing Body hereby declares that the Improvements described in this 
Resolution are necessary, and authorizes them to be made in accordance with the findings set forth in this 
Resolution, and further authorizes the levying of assessments and the issuance of bonds therefore, all in 
accordance with K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq. 
 
 Section 3.  The City expects to make capital expenditures from and after the date of this Resolution 
in connection with the Improvements described herein, and intends to reimburse itself for such expenditures 
with the proceeds of one or more series of general obligation bonds and temporary notes of the City in the 
maximum principal amount of $70,000, plus costs of issuance, and plus costs of interest on any temporary 
financing. 
 
 Section 4.  The City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Register of Deeds 
of Ellis County, Kansas. 
 
 Section 5.  Resolution No. 2014-025, adopted by the City on November 25, 2014, is hereby 
repealed. 
 
 Section 6.  This Resolution shall take effect after its passage and publication once in the official 
city newspaper. 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Hays, on August 13, 
2015. 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

191



192



193



 

194



Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

From: John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works 

Work Session: August 6, 2015 

Subject: S&W Alley Pavement – Award of Bid 

Person(s)  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Responsible: Greg Sund, Director of Public Works 

Summary
The previous agenda item addressed the resubmission of a petition for improvements pave 
alley between 7th and 8th Street just west of Allen Street.  Even though the lowest bid for 
construction was higher than the original petition amount, the petitioners (Don Bickle and 
Dave Van Doren) want to proceed with the project.  Staff recommends awarding a contract to 
the low bidder (APAC) in the amount of $61,261.90 for construction of alley pavement to be 
assessed 100% to the benefit district and paid off in 10 years.  There is no City-at-large share 
for oversizing.  

Background 
Don Bickle, Jr., owner of S&W supply contacted City staff about paving the alley between 7th 
and 8th Street just west of Allen Street adjacent to their place of business.  Mr. Bickle 
coordinated with other property owners within the benefit district to gain their support.  The 
Kansas Works Job Center is adjacent to the alley, but not included in the benefit district since 
that property is owned by the State of Kansas.  A map showing the proposed benefit district 
is attached.   In November, the City passed a resolution authorizing the improvements with 
the cost to be assessed to property owners within the benefit district based on lineal footage 
fronting the alley to be paid off in 10 years.  Also at that time, an Engineering Service 
Agreement was entered with Harvey Ruder for engineering services. 

Discussion 
Bids for this project were opened on June 30, 2015 with bids coming from two (2) 
bidders: APAC and J Corp.  APAC submitted the low bid in the amount of $61,261.90.   

Summary of Bids 
Engineer’s 
Estimate APAC J Corp 

TOTAL (Alley Pavement) $66,346.50 $61,261.90 $62,859.80 

195



A detailed tabulation of bids is attached. 
 
A separate agenda item addresses the issue of the low bid price exceeding the original petition 
amount by recommending the adoption of a new resolution authorizing the improvements as a 
result of a new petition from the benefit district owners at a higher total project cost. 

The alley would be paved with 6” thick concrete.   

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
Estimated total Project Cost: 
 
Engineering  $  4,900.00 
Construction   $61,261.90 
Bond & Issuance $  3,500.00 
Contingency  $      338.10  
TOTAL  $70,000.00 
 
There is no City Share for any costs associated with this project. 
 
The developer is financing the improvements through the creation of a special benefit 
district.  The City’s Development Policy allows 100% of the cost of this project to be 
assessed to adjacent property owners over a period of 10 years.   
 
The estimated $70,000 to be special assessed would be bonded. 
 

Options 
Options include the following: 

• Award contract as recommended by city staff 
• Provide alternate direction to staff 
• Do nothing. 

  
Recommendation 

Staff recommends entering a contract with the low bidder as presented. 
 

Action Requested 
Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with APAC in the amount of 
$61,261.90 for construction of alley pavement between 7th and 8th Street just west of 
Allen Street to be paid with a Special Benefit District. 

 
Supporting Documentation 

Location Maps 
Bid Tabulation 

196



3

2

5

4

12

11

13

6

7

20

10

9

11

5

14

13

12

8

7

6

9

10

24

28

30

36

34

32

33

35

31

29

23

21

27

25

15

19

17

13

11

13

5

3

1

7

9

11

15

10

6

8

4

14

12

2

29

26

21

25

27

23

18

22

20

24

30

28

34

31

35

33

32

36

16

17

19

1

8

12

13

11

10

15

17

16

14

18

9

8

4

2

6

12

13

11

10

15

17

16

14

18

9

1

5

3

7

8

4

2

6

12

13

11

10

15

17

16

14

18

9

1

5

3

7

17

16

14

18

8

4

2

6

12

13

11

10

15

17

16

14

18

9

1

5

3

7

8

4

2

6

12

10

16

14

18

4

2

1

5

3

7

8

4

2

6

12

13

11

10

15

9

1

5

3

7

1

2

3

4

4

6

8

18

16

14

17

15

13

14

12

1

2

3

5

7

11

13

7

3

1

5

11

9

15

13

17

5

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

19

17

13

15

11

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

25

23

21

32

33

34

35

36

27

28

29

30

31

S

A

N

T

A

 

F

E

E

 

8

T

H

 

S

T

E

 

6

T

H

 

S

T

E

 

7

T

H

 

S

T

A

L

L

E

N

 

S

T

P

I

N

E

 

S

T

E

 

5

T

H

 

S

T

A

B
C

D

E

F
G

City of Hays, Public Works Dept
October 2014
HP Wilson Addition
Alley Pavement Benefit District

Benefit District
City Limit

LOCATION
27th St

13th St

8th St

V
in

e 
S

t

City of Hays, Ellis County, KansasPavement

197



 

198



S&W Alley Benefit District 
 

 
Looking West 

 

 
Looking East 

199



BID TABULATION BIDS RECEIVED June 30, 2015, AT 3:00 PM
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS
S & W ALLEY PAVEMENT PROJECT  
CITY OF HAYS PROJECT NO. 2014-18 DATE: 6-30-15

APAC-KANSAS, INC. J CORP
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE P.O. BOX 190 1707 E. 1OTH 

HAYS, KS  67601 HAYS, KS 67601
  

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT UNIT
NO. DESCRIPTION & UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

SANITARY SEWER
1 Mobilization 1.0 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $7,680.00 $7,680.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00
2 Traffic Control 1.0 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,300.00 $1,300.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
3 Construction Staking 1.0 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $650.00 $650.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
4 Pavement Removal 83.8 SY $25.00 $2,095.00 $12.00 $1,005.60 $35.00 $2,933.00
5 Saw Cut 15.0 LF $20.00 $300.00 $8.00 $120.00 $7.00 $105.00
6 Common Excavation 150.0 CY $20.00 $3,000.00 $25.00 $3,750.00 $22.00 $3,300.00
7 Embankment 5.0 CY $20.00 $100.00 $30.00 $150.00 $20.00 $100.00
8 Alley Pavement, 6" (AE) 588.7 SY $60.00 $35,322.00 $66.00 $38,854.20 $68.00 $40,031.60
9 Concrete Pavement, 6" (AE) 7.4 SY $90.00 $666.00 $74.00 $547.60 $68.00 $503.20

10 Entrance Pavement, 7" (AE) 48.9 ST $90.00 $4,401.00 $75.00 $3,667.50 $70.00 $3,423.00
11 Curb and Gutter 57.3 LF $50.00 $2,865.00 $45.00 $2,578.50 $35.00 $2,005.50
12 Sidewalk, 6" (AE) 106.5 SF $15.00 $1,597.50 $9.00 $958.50 $9.00 $958.50

TOTAL ALLEY PAVEMENT. $66,346.50 $61,261.90 $62,859.80

200



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works 
 
Work Session:  August 6, 2015 
 
Subject: Tallgrass Addition Phase 5 – Inspection 
 
Person(s) Responsible: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  Greg Sund, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
In July, the City Commission approved a bid for the construction of Phase 5 of the Tallgrass 
addition.  City Staff solicited proposals for Inspection and Testing Services, and recommends 
authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with Driggs Design Group in the amount 
of $18,936.00 to be funded as part of the Special Benefit District. 
 

Background 
In February 2015, TG Investments, LLC petitioned the City for Street, Storm Sewer, Water, 
and Sanitary Sewer Improvements to an area containing 33 lots in the Tallgrass Addition 
within the City of Hays.  The general nature of the proposed improvements is as follows: 

• The construction of 17th Street from Copper Creek Court east to approximately 
70 feet north of Limestone Court; the construction of Prairie Run Court, 
including a cul-de-sac; the construction of Rolling Hills from 17th Street, 
approximately 120 feet north; and all related curb, gutter and stormwater sewer 
improvements. 

 
• The construction of approximately 1640 linear feet of 8” water line and 460 

linear feet of 6” water line, fire hydrants, service connections and all other 
necessary and related water improvements. 

 
• The construction of approximately 1245 linear feet of 10” sanitary sewer and 

approximately 370 linear feet of 8” sanitary sewer, manholes, sanitary sewer 
service connections and all other necessary and related sanitary sewer 
improvements. 

 
Subsequently, a resolution establishing a benefit district and authorizing the improvements 
was approved by the City Commission on February 12, 2105.  Also at that time, an 
Engineering Service Agreement was entered with Baughman Company for engineering 
design. 

201



 
Bids for construction were opened on June 3rd with the low bid exceeding both the engineer’s 
estimate and the original petition amount.  The developer wanted to proceed with the project, 
so at the July 9th City Commission, a new resolution for the higher amount was approved and 
the low bid for construction was awarded. 
 

Discussion 
City Staff solicited proposals for the inspection and testing of construction activities by 
advertising in the Hays Daily News, posting on the City’s website, and sending it to 
qualified firms in the local area.  Three proposals were received, with a summary listed 
below: 
 
Advanced Technical Professional Services  - declined 
Alfred Benesch & Company    - declined 
Baughman Company     - $46,200 
Driggs Design Group     - $18,936 
Kirkham-Michael     - declined 
Penco Engineering     - $62,500  
Ruder Engineering     - declined 
 
The proposal from Driggs Design Group is attached. 
 
Staff Recommends authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with Driggs Design 
Group in the amount of $18,936.00 for inspection and testing services for Phase 5 of the 
Tallgrass Addition. 
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
Estimated total Project Cost: 

 Total City Share 
Developer 
(30%) Benefit District 

Design  $     58,000.00   $  3,469.27   $  16,359.22   $  38,171.51  
Construction  $1,011,458.00   $60,500.36   $285,287.29   $665,670.35  
Inspection  $     18,936.00   $  1,132.66   $    5,341.00   $  12,462.34  
Issuance & Admin  $     55,000.00   $  3,289.83   $  15,513.05   $  36,197.12  
Totals  $1,143,394.00   $68,392.11   $322,500.57   $752,501.32  

 
 
The project is being financed through the creation of a special benefit district, with the 
City paying for oversizing of sanitary sewer and street pavement, and the developer 
paying 30% of the costs.   
 
The $18,936 cost for Inspection and testing is distributed proportionally between the City 
Share for oversizing, the developer cash payment up front, and the special benefit district. 

202



 
Options 

Options include the following: 
• Enter agreement as recommended by city staff 
• Provide alternate direction to staff 
• Do nothing. 

  
Recommendation 

Staff recommends entering an agreement with Driggs Design Group in the amount of 
$18,936.00 for inspection and testing services for Phase 5 of the Tallgrass Addition. 
 

Action Requested 
Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Driggs Design Group in the 
amount of $18,936.00 for inspection and testing services for Phase 5 of the Tallgrass 
Addition to be funded through the Special Benefit District 

 
Supporting Documentation 

Location Maps 
Request for Proposals 
Driggs Proposals 
Draft Agreement 
 

203



Tallgrass Addition, Phase 5

204

johnbraun
Text Box
Tallgrass Addition

johnbraun
Oval



Tallgrass Addition - Phase 5

205

johnbraun
Polygonal Line

johnbraun
Text Box
Subject Property



Tallgrass Addition - Phase 5

206

johnbraun
Polygonal Line



315 Ellis St.  Wichita, KS 67211    P 316-262-7271   F 316-262-0149

Baughman Company , P.A.

Baughman
E:\Projects\Tallgrass Addition_Phase 5\Engineering\Phase 5\Base

207

johnbraun
Text Box
Tallgrass Addition - Phase 5Benefit District Map

johnbraun
Text Box
Limestone Court



 

 1 of 8 

 

 

 

City of Hays 

Request for Proposals 

 

 

COH Project 2014-27 

Tallgrass Addition – Phase V 

 

Project Testing & Inspection 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Issue: July 2, 2015 

Proposal Due Date:  July 21, 2015 

208



 

COH 2014-27 Tallgrass, Phase V Construction Engineering Services RFP  

2 of 8 

 

Table of Contents 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 3 

2. RULES OF PREPARATION 3 

3. INQUIRIES 3 

4. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS 3 

5. NOTIFICATION OF WITHDRAWL OF PROPOSAL 4 

6. MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS/SCOPE OF SERVICES 4 

7. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 4 

8.  RIGHT OF THE CITY OF HAYS TO REJECT PROPOSALS 5 

9. EVALUATIONS 5 

10. NON-LIMITATIONS TO RFP   5 

11. INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA 5 

12. PROJECTED SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 5 

13. BID RESPONSE FORMAT 5 

14. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DOCUMENTS 6 

15. LEGAL NOTICE 6 

16. EXHIBIT A (SCOPE OF SERVICES) 7 

17. EXHIBIT B (CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SPECIFICATIONS)  

18. EXHIBIT C (GUIDELINES AND EXPECTATIONS POLICY TO DEVELOP ENGINEERING SCOPE OF 

SERVICES FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT)  

 

As-bid Construction Plans - available upon request 

 

209



 

COH 2014-27 Tallgrass, Phase V Construction Engineering Services RFP  

3 of 8 

 

1.  Introduction 

 City of Hays invites your firm to submit a written proposal for Construction Phase 
Engineering Services related to the construction of COH Project 2014-27, 
Tallgrass Addition, Phase V.  See Exhibit A for the Scope of Service. 

COH Project No. 2014-27 is a project to construct improvements for a new 
residential subdivision in the eastern portion of Hays, Kansas.  Improvements 
include sanitary sewer, water, storm sewer, grading, street construction, and 
associated work. Award of bid for construction is expected on or about July 9, 
2015, and construction is anticipated to start on or about September 14, 2015.  
Once Notice to Proceed is issued, the contractor has 130 working days to 
complete work. 

 

2.  Rules of Preparation 

The submitted proposals must follow the rules and the format established within 
this RFP.  Adherence to these rules will ensure a fair and objective analysis of all 
proposals.  Failure to comply with any portion of this request may result in 
rejection of a proposal. 

3.  Inquiries 

The City of Hays has prepared this RFP and has designated John Braun as project 
manager. Please direct questions or comments concerning this RFP to: 

 

John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works 

City of Hays Public Works Department 

1002 Vine Street 

Hays, Kansas 67601 

(785) 628-7350 

(785) 628-7352 (fax) 

johnbraun@haysusa.com 

 

To ensure a timely response, questions requiring a response should be faxed or e-
mailed to the contact listed above.   

4.  Submission of Proposals 

Please prepare and submit one (1) original plus (1) copy of the Proposal.  
Completed Proposals should be sealed and clearly marked "Proposal for 
Tallgrass-Phase 5 Inspection" and be submitted no later than 5:00 P.M. (July 21, 

2015), to the City of Hays Public Works Department, 1002 Vine Street, Hays, 
Kansas 67601.  

Proposals received after the above date and time will be considered late and will 
not be accepted.  Any late Proposals will be returned unopened to the firm.  
Responses will be evaluated objectively based on the firm's responses to the RFP. 

The City of Hays will not pay costs incurred in the proposal preparation including 
the costs for printing, demonstration, negotiation process, etc.  All costs for the 
preparation of the proposal shall be borne by the proposing firm. 

210



 

COH 2014-27 Tallgrass, Phase V Construction Engineering Services RFP  

4 of 8 

 

5.  Notification of Withdrawal of Proposal 

Proposals may be modified or withdrawn by an authorized representative of the 
firm or by formal written notice prior to the final due date and time specified for 
proposal submission.  Submitted proposals will become the property of City of 
Hays after the proposal submission deadline. 

6.  Minimum Specifications/Scope of Services 

Proposals should address all requested materials, testing, and services necessary 
to complete the project.  Services required include, but may not be limited to the 
Scope of Services detailed in Exhibit A. 

List in detail how you propose to provide the services along with a schedule of 
fees.    

7.  Contractual Obligations 

The successful firm will be required to enter an Agreement for Services with the 
City of Hays in which the firm will undertake certain obligations. These 
obligations include, but are not limited to, the following:  

Inclusion of Proposal - The proposal submitted in response to this RFP will be 
incorporated as part of the Agreement for Professional Services. 

Indemnification and Insurance - The successful firm(s) shall indemnify and hold 
the City of Hays and its officers, agents, employees and assigns, harmless from 
any liability imposed for injury whether arising before or after completion of 
work hereunder, or in any manner directly or indirectly caused, occasioned or 
contributed to, or claimed to be caused, occasioned or contributed to, in whole or 
in part, by reason of any act or omission, including strict liability or negligence of 
firm, or of anyone acting under firm's direction or control or on its behalf, in 
connection with or incident to, or arising out of the performance of this contract.  
Successful firm shall maintain the following insurance requirements during the 
time of performance of these services and contract period.  An insurance 
certificate must be on file with the City Clerk’s office within four weeks of the 
signing of the contract by both parties. 

 

a. General Liability Insurance, with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 for 
each occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate 

 

b. Automobile Liability Insurance, with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 
for each person and $1,000,000 for each accident. . 

 

c. Worker's Compensation insurance in accordance with statutory requirements 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance, with a limit of $500,000 for each 
occurrence 

d.  Professional Liability Insurance, with a limit of $2,000,000 annual aggregate. 

 

The successful firm shall require all of its subcontractors to maintain the same 
level of insurance listed above. 

211



 

COH 2014-27 Tallgrass, Phase V Construction Engineering Services RFP  

5 of 8 

 

Costs - All costs are to be stated in exact amounts.  All costs must be detailed 
specifically in the cost proposal section of the proposal; no additional charges 
(e.g. for sales tax, training, out-of-pocket expenses, etc.) will be allowed unless so 
specified in the proposal. 

Selection - The final award is subject to the approval of the Hays City 
Commission. 

8.  Right of the City of Hays to Reject Proposals 

The City of Hays reserves the right to reject any and all proposals or any part of 
any proposals, to waive minor defects or technicalities, or to solicit new proposals 
on the same project or on a modified project that may include portions of the 
originally proposed project as the City may deem necessary in its best interest. 
The City also reserves the right to negotiate with any firm, all or part of any 
proposal that is in the best interest of the City. 

9.  Evaluations 

The City of Hays staff will review the proposals for compliance with the RFP and 
make a recommendation to the city commission for approval.  

10.  Non-limitations to RFP    

The format of the RFP must be followed and all requested information must be 
submitted as indicated; however, the City of Hays is receptive to any additional 
suggestions pertaining to services development, additional related capabilities, 
and any alternative methods for providing related services.  Any exceptions to the 
RFP terms and conditions must be included in writing in the proposal. 

11. Interpretations and addenda 

 No interpretation made to any respondent as to the meaning of the RFP shall be 
binding on the City of Hays unless repeated in writing and distributed as an 
addendum by the City of Hays.  Interpretations and/or clarification shall be 
requested in writing from the contact person listed in Section 3. 

12.    Projected Schedule of Events 

Release of RFP Document   July 2, 2015  

Last day to submit proposals for proposal opening             July 21, 2015 

Request for Award to the City Commission for approval August 13, 2015 

   

13. Proposal Response Format 

In order to facilitate the analysis of responses to this RFP, firms are required to 
prepare their proposal in accordance with the instructions outlined in section 4.   

Proposals should be prepared as simply as possible and provide a straightforward, 
concise description of the firm's capabilities to satisfy the requirements of the 
RFP.  Expensive bindings, promotional material, etc., are not necessary or 
desired. 

Emphasis should be concentrated on accuracy, completeness, and clarity of 
content. 

 

212



 

COH 2014-27 Tallgrass, Phase V Construction Engineering Services RFP  

6 of 8 

 

The proposal shall include, as a minimum: 

 

1. Fee/Cost Proposal 
2. Scope of Work 
3. Qualifications/Experience:  Provide a list of similar projects your company has 

completed and a list of references (3 minimum). 
4. Certifications:  All testing and inspection must be performed by or under the 

supervision of a certified individual. 
5. Detailed explanation of any proposed variance from RFP. 

14. Confidentiality of Documents 

All responses to the RFP submitted by firms shall be deemed public documents at 
the time opened by the City of Hays.  The RFP is intended to be worded in a 
manner so as not to elicit proprietary information from the firm. If proprietary 
information is submitted as part of the proposal, such information is to be labeled 
proprietary and be accompanied with a request that the information is to be 
returned by the City of Hays to the submitter.  Any proposal that is submitted with 
a blanket statement or limitation that would prohibit or limit such public 
inspection shall be considered non-responsive and shall be rejected. 

15. Legal Notice 

Required Contractual Provisions 

Unless specifically waived in its request for proposals or request for proposals, or 
included as alternate provisions to be proposal or proposed, The City of Hays, 
shall not award contracts nor let proposals to individuals or entities unless the 
vendor, contractor or individual agrees to indemnify and hold The City of Hays, 
harmless from any and all losses, damages or expenses of any kind arising out of 
any and all claims, demands, or causes of action initiated against The City of 
Hays, by competing entities bidding on the project which is the subject of the 
contract.  
 
The selected contractor shall be bound by the conditions and provisions 
established in Part II, Chapter 2, Article XI of the City of Hays, Kansas Code of 
Ordinances. See the attached “City Contracts” flyer for more information. The 
city code is available through the City of Hays website at www.haysusa.com or 
by contacting the project manager. 

 
The City of Hays expects a professional job, done commensurate with the 
standards and practices of the profession/or business. 

 

The City of Hays has an affirmative action program.  Any firm will be required to 
include the following statement in any contract with the City of Hays: 

 "Vendor shall not discriminate in the employment of persons engaged in the 
performance of this Agreement on account of race, color, national origin, 
ancestry, religion, sec, marital status, physical handicap, or medical condition, in 
violation of any federal or state law.  Vendor shall comply with all requirements 
of the City of Hays pertaining to affirmative action with regard to employment 
while this Agreement is in effect." 

213



COH 2014-27 Tallgrass, Phase V Construction Engineering Services RFP 

7 of 8 

214



 

COH 2014-27 Tallgrass, Phase V Construction Engineering Services RFP  

8 of 8 

 

 Exhibit A  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Construction Phase Engineering Services 

     Tallgrass Addition, Phase V  

 

 

Construction is expected to occur during the 2015 construction season.  Allowable time 
on the construction contract is 130 calendar days.  The project includes: Installation of 
sanitary sewer, water lines, storm sewer, grading, paving and other related work.  See 
attached Contract Documents for quantities and specifications. 

 

Engineer shall provide for owner Professional Construction Administration Services to 
include serving as the owner’s professional on-site construction administration 
representative, providing professional engineering consultation and advice during the 
“Construction Engineering” and “Warranty Inspection” phases in accordance with the 
City of Hays Guidelines and Expectations Policy to Develop Engineering Scope of 
Services for New Development effective date October 22, 2009.   

 

Engineer is to provide certified personnel and all supplies and equipment necessary to 
conduct material and acceptance tests in accordance with the requirements and 
frequencies stated in the City’s standard specifications.  Testing shall be in a manner that 
meets professional standards for this type of work and meets or exceeds all applicable 
safety requirements. 

 

List in detail how you propose to provide the services along with a schedule of fees.  
While all options will be considered, for ease of comparison the proposer may submit a 
lump sum fee not to exceed including all significant assumptions.   

 

In addition to the services detailed in the City of Hays Guidelines and Expectations 
Policy to Develop Engineering Scope of Services for New Development effective date 
October 22, 2009, the Engineer shall participate in erosion control device inspections per 
the KDHE stormwater permit. 

 

Sanitary Sewer construction is at depth up to 22’ deep.  Compaction testing of sanitary 
sewer trench fill must be accomplished in accordance with applicable safety 
requirements.  

 

All personnel must comply with the high visibility apparel requirements of the KDOT 
Safety Manual, Chapter 4, Section 8, Fluorescent Vests. 

215



Page 1 of 8 

CITY OF HAYS  POLICY MANUAL
    

SUBJECT ISSUED BY EFFECTIVE DATE REVISION DATE 
 

GUIDELINES AND EXPECTATIONS 
POLICY TO DEVELOP ENGINEERING 

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR NEW 
DEVELOPMENT 

 

City Manager 1-19-99 11-29-06 

 
POLICY STATEMENT:  

The purpose of this policy is to create continuity between various engineering firms 
performing engineering services for developers and the City of Hays.  

When engineering firms want to do business for the City of Hays, they must obtain 
these guidelines and adhere to the expectations listed. This policy is intended to 
compliment the City’s existing Subdivision Regulations and Standard Details and 
Specifications.  

The following guidelines are for all engineering companies to use as a standard policy 
for creating a Scope of Services for new development within the city limits of Hays.  
 

Procedures:  
 
I. GENERAL COMMENTS:  

The ENGINEER shall provide CITY with professional engineering services in all phases 
of the Project to which this agreement applies as hereinafter provided. These services 
will include serving as CITY’s professional engineering representative for the Project, 
providing professional engineering consultation and advice and furnishing customary 
civil engineering services. The ENGINEER shall look after the best interest of the CITY 
during the course of the Project.  

These guidelines and expectations are intended to be used for ENGINEER to generate 
a Scope of Services for subdivision development, which includes engineering for water 
lines, sewer lines, streets and storm sewer improvements.  

The ENGINEER is expected to represent the City and Developer, if party to the 
contract, in all aspects of project management from the conceptual design phase 
through the warranty phase. ENGINEER will coordinate Contractor activities and 
communicate between all parties (City, Developer, Contractor, Utility Companies, 
general public, media, etc.)  
 
 

216



Page 2 of 8 

All professionals who contract for services with the City of Hays should be ready to 
agree:  

1. There will be no limitation of liability to the City or the public for negligent 
performance or breach of contract.  

 
2. There will be established levels of insurance coverage to be provided.  

 
3. The City will own all intellectual product created during performance of services. 

Under most circumstances, the professional will retain a license to use the 
product, but may not sell or assign it.  

 
II. PRELIMINARY DESIGN AND STUDY PHASE:  

The ENGINEER shall consult with CITY to clarify and define CITY’s requirements for 
the project and review available data.  

ENGINEER shall identify and analyze requirements of governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction to approve the design of the Project and participate in consultations with 
such authorities.  

ENGINEER shall prepare schematic layouts, sketches, and conceptual design criteria 
with appropriate exhibits to indicate clearly the considerations involved (including 
applicable requirements of governmental agencies and authorities having jurisdiction as 
aforesaid) and the alternative solutions available to CITY.  

ENGINEER shall be familiar with City of Hays Development Policy, Subdivision 
Regulations and other City Standards.  

ENGINEER shall be available to meet with applicable Review Committees (i.e.,  
Planning Commission, Utility Advisory Commission, etc.) and the public including 
organizing and conducting public meetings as needed.  

The ENGINEER will develop a time line for preliminary design and study phase 
activities.  

The ENGINEER will provide weekly reports to City staff of project progress throughout 
the project.  

At the conclusion of the Preliminary Design and Study Phase, ENGINEER shall prepare 
and submit an estimate of construction costs to the CITY for review before a Notice to 
Proceed will be issued by CITY for the remainder of the engineering contract.  
 
 

 

217



Page 3 of 8 

III. ENGINEERING DESIGN PHASE:  

• Provide two (2) copies of plans and specifications to Public Works for review. 
  

• Generate third party agreement, if applicable.  
 

• Develop time line for engineering and construction of project.  
 

• Provide weekly reports to City staff of project progress from preliminary design 
through the final design phase.  

 
• Perform field surveys to collect pertinent topographic and engineering data 

necessary to complete the design of the project.  
a. Property surveys  

b. Centerline and section line data  

c. Contact DIGSAFE and research maps, etc. for city utilities.  

d. Look at all available survey information in the project area.  

e. Determine right-of-way, easement and ownership research as required.  

f. Review city limit descriptions for additional pertinent information and write  
  necessary legal descriptions for legal staff.  

g. Review plats for additional pertinent information.  
 

• Prepare plans and specifications for the project according to City of Hays 
construction standards.  

 
a. Prepare front-end documents, including construction contracts and bid 

bond requirements.  
 
b. Project specific section specifications.  
 
c. Plans  

1. Title sheet  

2. Location map  

3. Quantity tabulation with bid items listed according to the pay items 

listed in the City’s standard specifications.  

4. Plan and profile sheets with bid item call-outs, elevations to mean 

sea level datum and all information needed to stake the project.  

5. Details  

218



Page 4 of 8 

6. Traffic control (MUTCD)  

7. Earthwork cross sections  

 
• Review construction documents, project budget and perform a field check of the 

project with City staff.  

a. Liquidated damage language.  
b. Review Warranty language  

 
• Revise plans and specifications according to field check review.  

• Complete bid, engineer’s estimate and construction documents in sufficient detail 
to allow competitive bids to be received.  

a. Two (2) review copies of final check plans and specifications to City for 
review and approval. (Public Works Administration and P.I.E.) 

b. Provide Engineer’s Estimate for construction costs before City approval of 
plans and specifications.  

c. Time frame for review of bid documents and plans and specifications will 
be approximately 14 days prior to contractor solicitation.  

d. Submit to KDHE or other state agencies and get approval information to 
the City. Copies of all submittals need to be provided for City (Public 
Works).  

e. Prepare and submit various permits as required for KDOT, Union Pacific 
Railroad and other related agencies.  

 
• If necessary, write descriptions for rights-of-way and/or easements as required 

for the project.  

IV. CONTRACTOR SOLICITATION PHASE:  

• Assist the City in soliciting interest from contractors by:  

a. Preparing a Notice to Contractors, this can be published by City Clerk (at 
the City’s expense) in appropriate newspapers. (Coordinate activities with 
City Clerk)  

b. Mailing of Notice to Contractors to qualified contractors.  
c. Notifying appropriate plan rooms and provide updates as needed.  

 
• Provide bid documents to interested contractors and plan rooms.  

• Address contractor questions and issue appropriate addenda during the bid 
preparation period.  

• Conduct a pre-bid conference.  

219



Page 5 of 8 

• Coordinate with City Clerk, City Manager’s Office and Public Works to conduct 
the bid opening, tabulate the submitted bids, analyze the bids and make 
recommendations to the City regarding award of the construction contracts in a 
timely manner. Submit a copy of all bids to Public Works within five (5) working 
days. 

  
• Attend City Commission meeting to present Award of Bid recommendation, if 

required.  

• Prepare five (5) contract documents and distribute for execution.  

a. Public Works 
b. City Hall 
c. Contractor 
d. Engineer 
e. Developer 

 
• Send back bonds of unsuccessful bidders.  

V. CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING PHASE:  

• Conduct a pre-construction conference.  

a. Send notices to all appropriate parties including utilities and emergency 
services.  

b. Reserve meeting room.  
c. Send copy of pre-construction minutes and attendance list to Public 

Works.  
d. Collect fully executed documents and distribute to the appropriate parties 

(Public Works, City Clerk, Developer, Contractor, and Engineer).  
e. Facilitate and direct successful Contractor to stay on schedule, and begin 

and complete the project in a timely manner.  
f. Require listing of all sub-contractors from prime contractor.  

 
• Copy of Notice to Proceed to Public Works as soon as Contractor has signed.  

• Review all shop drawings and submittals.  

• Review and evaluate contractor schedules and make comments to the City on 
the contract schedule.  

a. Notify City and review.  
b. Liquidated damage control.  
c. Coordinate construction activities to coincide with other community related 

activities. 
• Daily logs, list of items.  

220



Page 6 of 8 

a. Keep record of tests taken that day.  
b. Conduct material and acceptance tests in accordance with the 

requirements and frequencies stated in the City’s standard specifications 
and keep records of all tests done.  

c. Recap the work completed on bid item log sheets.  
d. Record contractor foreman name and crew size.  
e. Record weather information and identify potential bad weather days.  

 
• Provide daily on-site inspection to verify compliance with the construction and 

contract documents.  The City reserves the right to use City Inspectors on any or 
all projects. 

• Take calls from local citizens and notify media of project schedules.  

• Oversee notification of local residents, emergency medical services, etc. of 
situations that may affect them (i.e., road closings, disruptions in utility services, 
etc.)  

• Answer questions from City staff.  

• Review and submit periodic Contractor pay estimates to the City for payment 
which shall include the following:  

a. List of materials on hand.  
b. Recap of contract days.  
c. Quantities completed to date as recorded on daily log sheets.  
d. Identify percent retained. 
e. Identify bad weather days (non-working days) on each pay estimate.  

 
• Prepare Change Orders as necessary for review and approval by the City.  

• Review liquidated damages and make recommendations to the City.  

• Conduct a final inspection with the City staff prior to acceptance of the project. 
Generate and submit a Notice of Substantial Completion for execution by 
Engineer and City along with the Engineer’s certification that all work has been 
completed in accordance with plans and specifications on the project.  

• When project is substantially complete, reduce retainage to 1% and warranty 
begins.  

• At the time of substantial completion, supply the City with shop drawings and all 
test reports on completion of project with certification that improvement is ready 
for the City’s use.  

221



Page 7 of 8 

• Prepare one (1) set of record drawings and submit to the City (Public Works 
Department) Provide record drawings on hard copy and disk (1).  

 
• Complete surety company questionnaires.  Notify KDHE when water/sewer 

projects are completed.  
 
VI. WARRANTY INSPECTION:  

• Conduct an 11-month warranty inspection. Inspector will review project prior to 
review with the City. All punch list items identified on the 11-month warranty 
inspection shall be completed by the contractor by the one-year warranty date.  
Penalties will be imposed on the contractor for delay in finalizing the project.  
Prepare written recommendation to the City for acceptable repair, if any, or 
recommend acceptance.  

 
• Complete final pay estimate.  

a.  Release bond, etc.  
b.  Prepare final paperwork.  
c.  Submit final pay estimate. 

  
VII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS:  

 
• Engineer shall provide a time schedule and compensation (Not-to-Exceed) 

schedule for each of the following items as well as other applicable areas:  

a.  Water Line  
1. Preliminary Design and Study Phase  
2. Engineering Design Phase  
3. Contractor Solicitation Phase  
4. Construction Engineering/Warranty Phase  

 
b.  Sewer Line:  

1. Preliminary Design and Study Phase  
2. Engineering Design Phase  
3. Contractor Solicitation Phase  
4. Construction Engineering/Warranty Phase  
 

c.  Streets:  
1. Preliminary Design and Study Phase  
2. Engineering Design Phase  
3. Contractor Solicitation Phase  
4. Construction Engineering/Warranty Phase  

 
d.  Storm Sewer:  

1. Preliminary Design and Study Phase  

222



Page 8 of 8 

2. Engineering Design Phase  
3. Contractor Solicitation Phase  
4. Construction Engineering/Warranty Phase  

 
• Insurance  

a. General Liability Insurance, with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 for 
each occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate.  

b. Automobile Liability Insurance, with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 for 
each person and $1,000,000 for each accident.  

c. Workers’ Compensation Insurance in accordance with statutory requirements 
and Employers’ Liability Insurance, with a limit of $500,000 for each 
occurrence.  

d. Professional Liability Insurance, with a limit of $2,000,000 annual aggregate.  
 

• In projects where the City is not party to the engineering and/or construction 
contracts, final acceptance of the project will not take place until after the one-year 
warranty period has expired. At that time, the Engineer must certify that the project 
has been completed and built per plans and specifications. The Developer will be 
responsible for all aspects of the project during construction and the one-year 
warranty period.  

• Other Miscellaneous Provisions per Standard Scope of Services.  

223



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     1 

 

 

 

 

 

July 21, 2015 

 

 

John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works 

City of Hays Public Works Department 

1002 Vine Street 

Hays, Kansas 67601 

 

RE: Tallgrass Addition – Phase V (Project Testing & Inspection)  

Dear Mr. Braun, 
 

The Driggs Design Group, PA is pleased to submit our proposal to provide the City of Hays with Construction 
Observation and Materials Testing services on the Tallgrass Addition – Phase V Project.  The proposed project 
involves  the  construction  of  a  new  residential  subdivision  and  includes  the  construction  of  new  water, 
sanitary  sewer,  storm  sewer  and  street  infrastructure.   The proposed  infrastructure  shall be built per  the 
plans  and  specifications  prepared  by  the  Baughman  Company  of Wichita.    In  addition,  construction  shall 
follow  the  requirements of  the City of Hays Standard Details and Specifications  for Public Works Projects.   
The project was recently bid and J‐Corp of Hays, Kansas was the successful low bidder.  The anticipated start 
date  for  the  project  is mid‐September  and  the  project  has  a  130 working  days  specified within  the  bid 
documents.   
 
The following information has been developed by the Driggs Design Group, PA from the guidelines set forth 
in the Request for Proposal distributed by the City of Hays for the project.    
 
ENGINEERING FEE PROPOSAL 
 
The Driggs Design Group, PA met with John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works, on July 16th, 2015 to 
further discuss the details of the project in addition to reviewing the Request for Proposal distributed by the 
City of Hays.  Based on this information, Driggs Design Group, PA has provided a lump sum price for the City 
to consider  for  its construction observation and materials testing needs.     These  items  include a  lump sum 
price for providing both the desired construction observation and materials testing to the City of Hays for the 
above referenced project.   The scope of work to be completed for this  lump sum option  is provided  in the 
next section of this proposal. 
 
 
 
 
 

HAYS OFFICE

205 E. 7th Street 
Hays, Kansas 67601 
P: (785) 313‐1346 

E: bdriggs@driggsdesign.com

224



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     2 

 

OPTION#1 (LUMP SUM) – For this option, the Driggs Design Group, has assumed that a representative from 
the Driggs Design Group, PA will be on  site an average of 12.5 hours per week during  construction.   The 
estimated was based on construction occurring 26 weeks or the 130 working days.   The required materials 
testing  associated  with  the  project  will  be  completed  during  the  allotted  hours  provided  above.      This 
estimate  includes  the  anticipated  lab  testing  that  will  be  required  for  the  soils  and  concrete  for  the 
construction of the project.  A breakdown of the lump sum pricing is provided in Appendix A. 
 
LUMP SUM (CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION AND MATERIALS TESTING)           $18,936.00 
 
The Driggs Design Group,  PA will  staff  this  project  from  the Hays Office,  therefore  no  travel  time,  travel 
expenses or excess mileage will be  incurred on the project.   The Driggs Design Group, PA will use Terracon 
Consultants Inc. for its soil proctors and concrete cylinder breaks. 
 
 
If the lump sum option assumptions vary from the desired expectation of the City of Hays, the following unit 
rates were used to develop the above lump sum price. These unit prices can be utilized by the City of Hays to 
modify  the  desired  time  commitment  associated with  the  desired  on‐call  testing  and  inspection  for  the 
project. 
 
 

DRIGGS DESIGN GROUP UNIT RATES

LABOR RATES  EXPENSES 

Project Manager                                              $85.00/Hr.       Proctors                                                    $160.00 Each 

Project Engineer                                              $65.00/Hr.       Beam Breaks                                              $50.00 Each 

Engineering Tech.                                            $54.00/Hr.       Sieve Analysis                                          $150.00 Each 

       Cylinder Breaks                                         $20.00 Each 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The scope of work has been detailed in the Scope of Services distributed by the City of Hays within the formal 
Request for Proposal dated July 2, 2015.   From our discussion with City Staff, one of the primary needs of the 
project will  be  the  need  to  perform  the  required materials  testing  for  the  project.      This  work will  be 
completed in conjunction with the construction observation. 
 
The Driggs Design Group, PA intends to create a Google Drive folder for the project and provide access to as‐
needed city staff throughout the duration of the project.   This folder will contain the project diaries for the 
time personnel was on  site,  test  reports, plans, project  specifications, pay estimates  and other  important 
project information relating to the project.   
 
Regular  communication will  be  held with  the  city  project manager  to  ensure  the  desired  inspection  and 
materials’ testing meets or exceeds the expectation of the City.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

225



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     3 

 

TEAM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
The  Driggs  Design  Team  has  significant  knowledge  of  common  construction  engineering  practices  and 
experience  in providing construction engineering services to community  infrastructure projects.   The Driggs 
Design Group, PA  is currently providing materials testing on a wide variety of projects throughout the Hays 
Area including but not limited to the 13th Street Improvements, Buckeye Wind Farm and the Heart of America 
Industrial Park.  We have also been performing this work on other residential and commercial sites for local 
contractors.  As has been the case on our recent Hays area projects, the Driggs Design Group, PA will utilize 
Terracon, Inc. on all laboratory testing needs.  A more detailed description of our team’s key staff and their 
associated expertise is provided below: 
 
Buck Driggs, PE – Project Manager ‐   Mr. Driggs will be your project manager and oversee all inspection and 
testing  activities  completed  by  the  Driggs  Design  personnel.    Buck  has  over  a  decade  of  construction 
engineering  and materials  testing  experience  having worked  on  a wide  variety  of  projects  that  includes 
transportation  infrastructure, water  and wastewater  treatment  facilities  and  airports.      His  construction 
engineering experience began  in 1995, working for both the Phillipsburg and Hays KDOT offices performing 
construction engineering services throughout District 3 as a civil engineering intern.  Buck will serve as your 
Project Manager and will provide general project oversight in addition to as‐needed construction observation 
and materials testing.   
 
Kurt Tschanz – Engineering Technician – Mr. Tschanz is the newest addition to the Driggs Design Group, PA, 
joining  the  firm  in May  of  2015.    Kurt  provides  additional  full  time  staffing  to  our Hays Office.  Kurt  has 
provided construction materials  testing on both Manhattan and Hays projects.   He  is currently performing 
the construction materials testing on the 13th Street Improvement Project, Buckeye Windfarm and the Heart 
of America Industrial Park.  His past experience as a surveyor and residential contractor provides him with a 
great  understanding  of  engineering  plans  and  specifications.    Kurt will  serve  as  the  primary  engineering 
technician assigned to the project. 
 
James Meis, PS – Survey Manager – Mr. Meis  joined the Driggs Design Group, PA  in January 2015 and  is a 
member of our Hays Office.   James is a licensed surveyor in the state of Kansas and has worked on numerous 
construction  projects  throughout  his  tenure.    James  is  very  familiar with  the  City  of Hays  and  has  been 
providing surveying services within the Hays Area for over 13 years.   Since  joining the Driggs Design Group, 
James has been providing materials testing (soils and concrete) on projects in Manhattan and Hays, Kansas.   
These projects  include  the Merion Addition and  Interlachen Addition  in Manhattan, Kansas as well as  the 
Heart of America  Industrial Park Grading  Improvements, 13th Street  Improvements and  the Buckeye Wind 
Operations and Maintenance Facility in the Hays Area.  James will provide as needed assistance to the project 
throughout construction.     
 
Zack Ewing – Engineering Technician – Zack  joined  the Driggs Design Group  in  January 2014 and provides 
engineering  and  field  support  for both  the Manhattan  and Hays office.    Zack has performed  construction 
materials testing on several residential development projects in the Manhattan Area.  Zack will be available 
to assist on the project on an as‐needed basis. 

 
Doug Driggs ‐ Senior Technician – Doug retired from KDOT  in March 2010 after spending 37 years with the 
organization.    During  his  career  at  KDOT  he  served  as  the  District  3,  Area  3  Maintenance  Supervisor 
overseeing  all maintenance  operations  on  State Highways  in  Philips,  Rooks, Osborne,  Smith,  and Norton 
Counties.  Throughout his career he worked on a wide range of roadway improvement projects.  Doug will be 
used  on  this  project  on  an  as  needed,  on‐call  basis  to  assist with  the  construction materials  testing  and 
construction observation. 

226



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     4 

 

PERSONNEL ROLES 
 
The following chart identifies the roles that each team member will provide to the project throughout the 
duration of the project. 
 
 

Team Member 
Personnel Role

Project 
Manager 

Materials 
Testing 

Construction 
Observation 

Buck Driggs 

Kurt Tschanz  

James Meis, PS 

Zack Ewing  

Doug Driggs (On‐Call) 

 
 
 
PAST PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
 
 
 
13th Street Improvements (Main Street to Milner Street) 

Hays, Kansas 

 
The  Driggs  Design  Group,  PA  is  currently  providing  the 
construction  materials  testing  for  the  13th  Street 
Improvement Project from Main Street to Milner Street.  The 
Driggs Design Group, PA is contracted by APAC Shears Inc. of 
Hays, Kansas to perform these materials testing services.  This 
project  involves  the  reconstruction  of  the  existing  street 
section,  including  the  adjacent parking areas  and  sidewalks.  
As  part  of  the  improvements,  storm  sewer  upgrades  were 
implemented  into  the  project.  The  estimated  cost  of  this 
project is approximately $2.0M 
 
 
Alan Moore              Curtis Webber 
APAC – Project Manager            Hays Public Works Inspector 
P: (785) 623‐0905            P: (785) 628‐7310 
E: Alan.Moore@apac.com          E: cweber@haysusa.com 
 
 
 

 

 

 

227



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     5 

 

Vine Street Reconstruction, Hays, KS 

This project was  completed  in 2013.   Driggs Design Group, 

PA  assisted  the City of Hays with  construction  engineering 

services  including construction materials testing and on‐call 

construction observation.   The project was  funded  through 

the  Kansas  Department  of  Transportation  KLINK  program 

and was constructed according to KDOT specifications.  As a 

part of the construction materials testing, the Driggs Design 

Group,  PA  completed  aggregate  gradations,  density  and 

moisture  testing of  in‐situ  soil and  the aggregate base and 

provide  field  and  lab  testing  for  the  poured  in  place 

concrete.    The  estimated  cost  of  the  improvements  was 

approximately $1.0M. 

 
References:  
 
John Braun              Curtis Webber 
Assistant Director of Public Works        Public Works Inspector 
P: (785) 628‐7350            P: (785) 628‐7310 
E: johnbraun@haysusa.com          E: cweber@haysusa.com 
 
 
Buckeye Wind Farm (Operations & Maintenance Facility) 
 
This project  includes the construction materials testing for the 
Buckeye  Wind  Farm  Operations  and  Maintenance  Facility 
located northwest of Hays, Kansas.    The project  included  the 
construction  of  a  new  7,000  square  foot  facility.    The Driggs 
Design Group, PA performed  the  soils  testing  for  the  footing, 
building pad and parking areas.    In addition, the Driggs Design 
Group, PA  completed all  concrete  testing associated with  the 
project  including  building  footings,  interior  slab,  light  pole 
bases,  parking  lot  and  sidewalks  associated  with  the  new 
construction.    The  Driggs  Design  Group,  PA  also  completed 
grout  testing  on  the  masonry  block  walls  that  were  being 
installed as part of the project. 
 
 
References:  
 
Bob Cook               
Project Manager – RDH Electric         
P: (785) 625‐3833             
           
 
 
 

228



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     6 

 

City of Manhattan Residential Subdivision Materials Testing 
Since  the Driggs Design Group, PA was established  in early 2013, 

we have been providing  soils and  concrete  testing on  residential 

subdivision construction within the City of Manhattan.   This work 

has been contracted through the successful low bidder, however is 

supervised by the City of Manhattan Public Works Inspection Staff.  

The  following  is  a  list  of  residential  subdivisions  that  the  Driggs 

Design Group, PA has  completed  the QC/QA materials  testing as 

part of the construction process. 

 

 Merion Addition   Scenic Meadows Addition   Enclave Addition 

 Interlachen Addition   Stone Ledge Addition   Grand Luxe Addition 

 Lee Mill Heights Addition   Grand Bluffs Addition   Stone Valley Addition, Unit 2 

 Northlake Addition, Unit 1   Northlake Addition, Unit 2   Turnberry Addition 
 
References:  

Brian Johnson               
City Engineer         
P: (785) 587‐2415             
E: johnsonb@cityofmhk.com           

 
 
US‐56 Business Concrete Overlay, Herington, KS*  
This  project  involved  improvements  to  Trapp  Street/US‐56 
Business  in the City of Herington from the Lime Creek Bridge to 
the south city  limits. The project  involved a concrete overlay of 
an  existing  asphalt  street  in  a  light  industrial  and  residential 
section of Herington.  The existing asphalt pavement was in poor 
condition and received funding from the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009.  The project team worked closely with 
the  City  of  Herington  and  the  Kansas  Department  of 
Transportation to develop this  innovative  infrastructure project.  
The  initial  surface  was  profile  milled  and  a  six  inch  concrete 
pavement  section was  placed  on  the  existing  asphalt.    The  original millings were  stockpiled  and  used  as 
shouldering material for the new roadway.  This 1,800 feet section of pavement was open to traffic after 19 
days of closure.  The estimated cost of construction was $300,000.  
 
References: 

Leo Schlesner            Joe Palic, PE 
Street Superintendent          KDOT Area Engineer       
P: (785) 258‐2542          P: (620) 382‐3717 
              E: palilc@ksdot.org 

 
*Buck  Driggs  served  as  the  Project Manager  on  the  above  reference  projects  as  a  member  of  another 
consulting engineering firm.  
 
 

229



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     7 

 

CERTIFICATIONS 
 
The following information is a list of KDOT Certifications held by key members of the Driggs Design Team. 
Additional certifications will be obtained by the Driggs Design Staff later this fall.  Early enrollments for these 
classes begin in September 2015.    
 
 
 

KDOT CERTIFICATIONS  BUCK DRIGGS JAMES MEIS KURT TSCHANZ  ZACK EWING

CERTIFICATION EXPIRATION DATES

Aggregate Field (AGF)  *

Aggregate Lab (AGL)  *

Profilograph   

Asphalt Paving Inspection 
(API) 

1/25/2017  *  *   

Concrete Paving Inspection 
(CPI) 

1/26/2017
 

*  *   

Basic Inspection (BI)  1/23/2017 * *

Structures (STR)  1/24/2017 * *

Soils Field   

Pile Driving Inspection (PDI)   

ACI Concrete Field Tester 
(CF) 

11/20/2020  *  *   

ACI Concrete Strength 
Tester (SC) 

*       

Statistics  9/2/2050

Nuclear Gauge (NUC)  * * *

QC/QA Asphalt   

QC/QA Concrete   

Drilled Shaft Inspection 
(DSI) 

       

QC/QA Concrete Base (QCB)   

(*) Expected Enrollment in September 2015 
 
 
In  addition  to  the  above  certifications,  each  of  the  individuals  listed  above  have  completed  the  Troxler 
Nuclear Gauge Training as well as  the  required Level  I HAZ‐MAT Training.   A copy of  these certifications  is 
provided in Appendix B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

230



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     8 

 

RFP VARIANCES 
 
The Driggs Design Group, PA finds this proposal to be sufficient to provide the City of Hays with a lump sum 
price to provide materials testing and construction observation services  for the Tallgrass Addition, Phase V 
Project.  We look forward to working with you and your staff to complete the project. 
 
 
The Driggs Design Group, PA looks forward to the opportunity to work with you on this project.  If you have 
any questions regarding our firm or our proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me at (785) 313‐1346. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Buck Driggs, PE 
Project Manager 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

231



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     9 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

Detailed Cost Estimate 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

232



Project 

Manager

Project 

Engineer

Liscensed 

Surveyor Sr. Eng Tech Eng Tech Proctors

Cylinder 

Breaks Beam Breaks Sieve Anal.

$85.00  $65.00  $80.00  $54.00  $45.00  $160.00  $20.00  $50.00  $150.00  Subconsultant Milleage Other

1.  Construction Administration Services

A. Conduct Pre‐Construction Conference 2 $108.00

B.  Issue Notice to Proceed (NTP) 2 $108.00

C.  Review Shop Drawings 3 $162.00

D.  Review Contractors Schedule 1 $54.00

E.  Prepare Daily Reports 5 $270.00

F.  Provide On‐Site Construction Observation 5 54 $3,341.00

G.  Construction Materials Testing 160 4 45 20 $11,640.00

H.  Provide Stakeholder Notification 1 $54.00

I.  Respond to City Staff Questions 3 $162.00

J.  Prepare Periodic Pay Estimates 4 $216.00

K.  Prepare Project Change Orders 5 $270.00

L.  Review Contractor Requests 2 $108.00

M.  Conduct Final Inspection 1 $54.00

N.  Final Paper work & Documentation 2 $108.00

Sub Total Hours 5 0 0 245 0 4 45 0 20 ‐$                     ‐$               ‐$               $16,655.00

Subtotal Costs 425.00$            ‐$                  ‐$                     13,230.00$        ‐$                640.00$          900.00$           ‐$               3,000.00$        ‐$                    ‐$              ‐$              18,195.00$             

2. Warranty Inspection

A.  Final Walk Thru 2 4 $386.00

B. Final Documentation 1 5 $355.00

$0.00

$0.00

Sub Total Hours 3 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 ‐$                     ‐$               ‐$               $741.00

Subtotal Costs 255.00$            ‐$                  ‐$                     486.00$             ‐$                ‐$                ‐$               ‐$                  ‐$                    ‐$              ‐$              741.00$                  

Total Hours 8 0 0 254 0 4 45 0 20 0 0 0 18,936.00$              

Total Costs $680.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,716.00 $0.00 $640.00 $900.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 ‐$                     ‐$               ‐$               $18,936.00

Task Total

ENGINEERING FEE ESTIMATE

Tallgrass Addition, Phase V
Project Testing & Inspection

City of Hays, KS

July 19, 2015

Construction Materials Testing                Items of Work
Expenses

ELLIS WATERLINE IMPROVEMENTS

Labor Costs Lab Testing

233



City of Hays, Kansas     
Tallgrass Addition – Phase 5                     10 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

 

Team Certifications 

 

234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



Page 1 of 8 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

This Agreement is hereby entered into this      __     day of      _______     ,    2015     , by and between the 

City  of  Hays  Kansas,  a  municipal  corporation  (hereinafter  “City”),  and  Driggs  Design  Group,  PA,  a 

Professional Corporation, (hereinafter “Consultant”). 

WHEREAS, the City desires to obtain professional engineering services, in connection with the  

Tallgrass Addition, Phase V (Project Testing & Inspection) 

(hereinafter “Project”); and, 

WHEREAS, Consultant is a professional corporation, with local offices located at 203 E. 7th Street, Suite 

D, Hays, KS 67601, licensed to provide professional engineering services in the state of Kansas; and, 

WHEREAS,  Consultant  is  qualified,  capable  and  prepared  to  perform  the  necessary  professional 

engineering services in connection with the Project as described in this Agreement; and, 

NOW  THEREFORE,  in  consideration  of  the mutual  promises  contained  herein,  the  parties  agree  as 

follows: 

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

A. The  term “Services” when used  in  this Agreement shall mean any and all professional 

engineering services provided by Consultant in accordance with this Agreement. 

 

B. City  agrees  to  retain Consultant  and Consultant  agrees  to perform  and  complete  the 

following Services for the Project: 

These Services are described in detail in the Request for Proposal distributed by the City 

of Hays, incorporated herein by reference, and the Proposal submitted on behalf of the 

Driggs Design Group, PA incorporated herein by reference. The City reserves the right to 

direct revision of the Services at the City’s discretion. 

C. Consultant shall advise the City of additional costs and time delays, if any, in performing 

the revision, before Consultant performs the revised services. If revisions of the Services 

are  necessary  due  to  Consultant’s  error  or  omission,  Consultant  shall  provide  the 

services and materials associated with such revisions, at no additional cost to the City. 

 

D. Consultant shall provide Services under this Agreement only upon written request of the 

City,  and  only  to  the  extent  defined  and  required  by  the  City.  Consultant  shall  not 

provide  any  services or materials not described by  this Agreement unless Consultant 

obtains prior written consent  from  the City.  If  the City gives prior written consent  for 

Supplemental Services, the City shall compensate Consultant with a fee mutually agreed 

upon  by  the  parties  prior  to  performance  of  the  Supplemental  Services.  Any 

Supplemental  services  or  materials  provided  by  Consultant  without  the  City’s  prior 

245



Page 2 of 8 
 

written  consent  shall be  at Consultant’s own  risk,  cost,  and  expense,  and Consultant 

shall not make a claim for compensation from the City for such work. 

 

2. STANDARD OF CARE 

A. Consultant  shall  exercise  the  same  degree  of  care,  skill,  and  diligence  in  the 

performance  of  all  Services  to  the  City  that  is  ordinarily  possessed  and  exercised  by 

reasonable,  prudent,  and  experienced  professional  engineer  under  similar 

circumstances. At the City’s request, Consultant shall re‐perform the Services, which fail 

to satisfy this standard of care. If Consultant fails to possess and exercise such care, skill, 

and diligence in providing all Services, Consultant shall be responsible to the City for any 

resulting loss or damages. 

 

B. Consultant  represents  it  has  all  other  necessary  licenses,  permits,  and  certifications 

required to perform the Services described herein. 

 

C. Consultant shall comply with, and cause  its sub‐consultants to comply with, applicable 

federal, state, and local laws, orders, rules, and regulations relating to the performance 

of the Services. 

 

D. Neither Consultant nor Consultant’s agents or employees shall discriminate against any 

employee  or  applicant  for  employment  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement  with 

respect  to  hiring,  tenure,  terms,  conditions,  or  privileges  of  employment,  because  of 

race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

 

3. COMPENSATION & AUDIT BY CITY 

A. As consideration for providing the Services, the City shall pay Consultant a lump sum fee 

of $18,936.00 as defined below. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that the total cost 

to  complete  the  Project  shall  not,  in  any way,  exceed  the  listed  amount  per  project 

without prior written approval by the City. 

 

i. Construction Observation & Materials Testing    $ 18,936.00 

 

B. Consultant shall submit an invoice to the City on the first of each month that details the 

percentage  of  each  task  that  was  completed  in  the  month  immediately  prior.  The 

invoice shall also indicate the percentage total of each task that has been completed for 

the  Project.  City  agrees  to  pay  the  balance  of  an  approved  invoice,  or  undisputed 

portions of a disputed  invoice, within 30 days of the date of receipt by the City.  In the 

event of a dispute, and prior  to  the  invoice’s due date, City  shall pay  the undisputed 

portion of the  invoice and notify Consultant of the nature of the dispute regarding the 

balance. 

 

246



Page 3 of 8 
 

C. At the City’s request, Consultant shall permit the City, or any  authorized representative 

of the City, at all reasonable times, to access and examine all records, books,   papers or 

documents  related  to Consultant’s performance under  this Agreement,    including, but 

not  limited  to,  expenses  for  sub‐consultants,  agents  or  assistants,  direct  and  indirect 

charges, and detailed documentation for all such work performed. 

 

4. SCHEDULE & DELAY 

A. Unless otherwise directed by the City, Consultant shall commence performance of the 

Services upon execution of this Agreement. 

 

B. Consultant shall provide Services pursuant to the agreed‐upon schedule, which shall be: 

 

i. Services  shall  be  provided  for  130  Working  Day  beginning  on  or  around 

September 14, 2015. 

 

C. Neither  the City nor  the Consultant shall be  in default of  the Agreement  for delays  in 

performance  caused  by  circumstances  beyond  the  reasonable  control  of  the  non‐ 

performing  party,  including,  but  not  limited  to,  unusually  severe weather  conditions, 

floods,  tornadoes,  earthquakes,  fires,  and  epidemics;  wars,  riots  and  other  civil 

disturbances; strikes, lockouts, and other labor disturbances; or judicial restraint. Should 

such a  circumstance occur,  the non‐performing party  shall, within a  reasonable  time, 

give  the  other  party written  notice  describing  the  circumstances  and  the  anticipated 

date to resume performance of the Agreement. 

 

D. If Consultant’s performance is delayed due to delays caused by the City, Consultant shall 

have  no  claim  against  the  City  for  damages  or  payment  adjustment  other  than  an 

extension of time to perform the Services. 

 

5. LIABILITY & IDEMNIFICATION 

A. Consultant  shall  indemnify  and  hold  harmless  the  City,  and  its  departments,  elected 

officials,  officers,  employees  and  agents,  from  and  against  all  liability,  suits,  actions, 

proceedings,  judgments,  claims,  losses,  liens,  damages,  and  injuries,  (including 

attorneys’ fees and other expenses of litigation, arbitration, mediation or appeal), which 

in whole or  in part arise out of or have been connected with, Consultant’s negligence, 

error,  omission,  recklessness,  or wrongful  or  criminal  conduct  in  the  performance  of 

Services, including performance by Consultant’s employees, agents and subcontractors. 

 

B. Consultant’s obligation to  indemnify and hold harmless shall remain  in effect and shall 

be binding on Consultant whether such injury shall accrue, or may be discovered, before 

or after termination of this Agreement. 

 

 

247



Page 4 of 8 
 

6. INSURANCE 

A. Consultant shall purchase and maintain, at  its expense,  insurance coverage as required 

in this Section for the term of this Agreement. The failure to purchase and maintain the 

minimum insurance required herein shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement 

upon  which  the  City  may  immediately  terminate  or  suspend  this  Agreement. 

Compliance with  the  insurance  requirements set  forth  in  this Section  to purchase and 

maintain  insurance shall not  in any manner  limit or qualify the  liability and obligations 

otherwise  assumed  by  the  Consultant  in  the written  contract/agreement.  Consultant 

shall  furnish  any  or  all  insurance  certificates  to  the  City,  as  requested  by  the  City. 

Insurance Companies must be  rated a minimum “A‐“ by  the Best’s Key Rating Guide’s 

latest edition. 

 

B. The consultant shall purchase and maintain insurance of the following types of coverage 

and limits of liability: 

 

i. Commercial  General  Liability  (CGL)  with  limits  of  insurance  of  not  less  than 

$1,000,000 each occurrence and $1,000,000 Annual Aggregate. 

 

1. If  the CGL  coverage  contains a General Aggregate  Limit,  such General 

Aggregate shall apply separately to each project. 

 

2. CGL coverage shall be written on ISO Occurrence form CG00 01 1096 or 

a substitute form providing equivalent coverage and shall cover liability 

arising  from premises, operations,  independent  consultants, products‐ 

completed operations, and personal and advertising injury. 

 

3. City of Hays, Kansas and all other parties required by the contract shall 

be  included as additional  insured’s on  the CGL. This  insurance  for  the 

additional  insured  shall  be  as  broad  as  the  insurance  for  the  named 

insured  Consultant.  It  shall  apply  as  Primary  and  non‐contributory 

insurance  before  any  other  insurance  or  self‐insurance,  including  any 

deductible, maintained by, or provided to, the additional insured. 

 

4. Consultant  shall  maintain  CGL  coverage  for  itself  and  all  additional 

insured’s  for  the  duration  of  the  project  and  maintain  Completed 

Operations coverage for itself and each additional insured for at least 3 

years after completion of work. 

 

ii. Automobile Liability with limits of at least $1,000,000 each accident. 

1. Business Auto coverage must include coverage for liability arising out of 

all owned, leased, hired and non‐owned automobiles. 

 

248



Page 5 of 8 
 

2. Owner shall be included as insured on the auto liability policy. 

 

iii. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability  limit of at  least $500,000 each 

accident, $500,000  for bodily  injury by accident, and $500,000 each employee 

for injury by disease. 

 

1. Where applicable, US Longshore and Harborworkers Compensation Act 

Endorsement shall be attached to the policy. 

 

2. Where  applicable,  the  Maritime  Coverage  Endorsement  shall  be 

attached to the policy. 

 

iv. Professional  Liability  Insurance:  Consultant  shall  purchase  and  maintain 

insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 for each claim and in the aggregate. 

 

C. Consultant  shall  provide,  prior  to  the  commencement  of  the  project,  a  certificate  of 

insurance  illustrating compliance with the  insurance requirements outlined above. This 

certificate and  the  insurance policies  required  shall  contain a provision  that  coverage 

afforded under  the policies will not be cancelled or allowed  to expire until at  least 30 

days prior written notice has been given to the City of Hays, Kansas, Attn: City Clerk, PO 

Box 490, Hays KS 67601. 

 

7. ASSIGNMENT OF AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR PERSONNEL 

A. Consultant’s  assignment of personnel  to perform  the  Services  shall be  subject  to  the 

City’s oversight and general guidance. 

 

B. While  upon  City  premises  or  property  under  the  City’s  control,  the  Consultant’s 

employees,   agents,   and   subconsultants   shall   be   subject   to   the   City’s   rules   and 

regulations respecting its property and the conduct of its employees thereon. 

 

8. OWNERSHIP & REUSE OF DOCUMENTS 

A. All drawings, specifications, test reports, and other materials and work products which 

are prepared or  furnished by the City prior to this Agreement, or  for the performance 

thereof, shall remain the City’s sole property. The City shall make available to Consultant 

the copies of such materials as necessary for Consultant to perform the Services. 

 

B. All  drawings,  specifications,  test  reports,  and  other  materials  and  work  products, 

including  computer aided drawings, designs, and other data  filed on electronic media 

which  will  be  prepared  or  furnished  by  Consultant  (and  Consultant’s  independent 

professional associates and  subconsultants) under  this Agreement, are  instruments of 

service  in  respect  to  the  Project  and  such  information  and  documents  prepared  by 

Consultant shall become the sole property of the City. At the City’s request, Consultant 

249



Page 6 of 8 
 

shall give the City all materials obtained or produced in the course of the Services. The 

City makes no warranty as  to  the  compatibility of  computer data  files with  computer 

software or software releases other than that used by Consultant in performing services 

herein.  Consultant  shall  maintain  complete  Services  records  for  five  (5)  years  after 

completion of the Services. 

 

C. The  City  understands  that  the  reuse  of  any  document  prepared  or  furnished  by 

Consultant  without  written  verification  or  adaptation  by  Consultant  for  the  specific 

purpose intended by the City shall be at the City’s sole risk and without liability or legal 

exposure to Consultant. 

 

9. CONSULTANT’S PERSONNEL AT PROJECT SITE 

A. The  presence  of  Consultant’s  personnel  at  a  construction  site  is  for  the  purpose  of 

providing the City a greater degree of confidence that the completed work will generally 

conform to the Scope of Work and related Project documents, and that the integrity of 

the design concept as reflected  in the Project documents have been  implemented and 

preserved by the contractor(s). 

 

B. Consultant  has  no  authority  to  exercise  control  over  any  construction  contractor.  

Consultant neither guarantees  the performance of  the contractor(s), nor assumes  the 

responsibility for the contractor’s failure to perform their work  in accordance with the 

Project documents. 

 

10. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 

A. The City and Consultant agree that the Consultant shall be and remain an independent 

contractor  in  the  performance  of  the  Services.  Consultant’s  employees,  agents,  or 

subconsultants  shall  not  be  considered  employees  of  or  subject  to  the  direction  and 

control of the City. 

 

B. Consultant  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  the  supervision  and  performance  of  all 

subconsultants to perform under this Agreement. 

 

11. NOTICES 

A. All notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing, and unless otherwise directed 

by this Agreement, shall be sent to the addresses as set forth in this Section. 

 

B. Notices sent by the Consultant to the City shall be sent to:  

John Braun 
Assistant Director of Public Works 
1002 Vine St 
Hays, KS 67601 

250



Page 7 of 8 
 

 
C. Notices sent by the City to the Consultant shall be sent to:  

 
Buck Driggs, PE 
Driggs Design Group, PA 

203 E 7th Street, Suite D 

Hays, KS 67601 

 

12. TERM & TERMINATION 

A. The  effective  date  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  the  date  of  execution,  when  the 

Agreement  is signed by both parties. This Agreement shall terminate upon completion 

of all Services to the satisfaction of the City, and upon final payment by the City. 

 

B. Notwithstanding Paragraph 12‐A, the City reserves the right and may elect to terminate 

this  Agreement  at  any  time,  with  or  without  cause.  The  City  shall  compensate 

Consultant for the Services that have been completed to the City’s satisfaction as of the 

date of termination. Consultant shall perform no activities other than reasonable wrap‐

up activities after receipt of notice of termination. 

 

13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Kansas. 

 

B. Venue and Jurisdiction. The parties agree any legal action arising out of this Agreement 

shall be filed solely in the Ellis County, Kansas, District Court, or the U.S. District Court of 

Kansas, as appropriate. 

 

C. Entire  Agreement.  This  Agreement,  including  attachments  incorporated  herein  by 

reference,  represents  the  entire  Agreement  and  understanding  between  the  parties, 

and this Agreement supersedes any prior negotiations, proposals or agreements. Unless 

otherwise provided  in  this Agreement, any amendment  to  this Agreement  shall be  in 

writing and shall be signed by the City and Consultant, and attached hereto. 

 

D. Severability.  If  any  part,  term  or  provision  of  this Agreement,  or  any  attachments  or 

amendments hereto, is declared invalid, void, or enforceable, all remaining parts, terms 

and provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

E. Waiver. The  failure of either party to require performance of this Agreement shall not 

affect such party’s right to enforce the same. A waiver by either party of any provision 

or breach of  this Agreement  shall be  in writing. A written waiver  shall not  affect  the 

waiving party’s rights with respect to any other provision or breach. 

 

251



Page 8 of 8 
 

F. Assignment. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits 

to any party other than the City and Consultant. Consultant shall not assign any interest 

in  this  Agreement without  the  City’s  prior written  consent.  If  Consultant  assigns  an 

interest  in  this Agreement without  the  City’s  prior written  consent,  such  assignment 

shall be void, and City may immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement. 

 

G. Successors and Assigns. Subject to Paragraph 13‐F, this Agreement shall be binding upon 

the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 

 

H. Third Parties. The Services  to be performed by Consultant are  intended  solely  for  the 

benefit  of  the  City.  Nothing  contained  herein  shall  create  a  contractual  relationship 

with, or any rights in favor of, any person or entity not a signatory to this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands the day and year above written. 

CONSULTANT:              CITY: 

 

 

_________________________________      ________________________________ 

_________________________________      ________________________________ 

 ________________________________                     ________________________________ 

 

 

   

 

(Signature)

(Printed Name)  (Printed Name)

(Title)  (Title)

Buck A. Driggs 

President/CEO 

(Signature) 

252



Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

From: Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 

Work Session: August 6, 2015  

Subject: Sewer Rate Study/Adjustment 

Person(s) Responsible:  Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 

Summary
Environmental restrictions at the City Sewer treatment facility, aging infrastructure and 
lack of funding for annual sewer capital maintenance repairs and rehabilitation and the 
insufficient user rates to fund such requirements prompted the need for a Sewer Rate 
Study. Springsted Inc was contracted to conduct a comprehensive study to determine the 
rate increases needed to support the above needs. Patty Kettles, VP with Springsted Inc 
made a presentation at the July 16th work session outlining the study and its 
recommendation. Springsted recommended the monthly sewer base and volumetric user 
rates should be increased 17% August 1, 2015, 15.5% annually 2016-2020 and 12.0% in 
2021. The Commission asked that more options be brought forward at a future work 
session. Based on another round of research, City staff is presenting four options and is 
recommending option 2 with the monthly sewer base and volumetric user rates increasing 
15% September 1, 2015, 15% annually 2016-2020 and 12% in 2021. 

Background 
Current environmental restrictions from the Kanas Department of Health and 
Environment (KDHE) have caused the need for the reconstruction of the city’s waste 
water treatment facility. The owner representative for the project, HDR, is providing 
consulting services, integrated project delivery, wastewater treatment engineering and 
construction monitoring. Their preliminary estimates have reached $30M. The KDHE 
permitting process requires that the new facility be operational by January 1, 2018 and 
fully implemented by July 1, 2018. 

Additionally, through an extensive research project using the Stong Towns initiative, city 
staff has discovered that the current waste water collection infrastructure is grossly 
underfunded. It was determined that the city should be spending approximately $1M per 
year for annual sewer capital maintenance and repairs as well as manhole rehabilitation 
and collection system repairs. 

The current base and volumetric charges for the sewer utility is one of the lowest in the 
state and is insufficient to fund the needed reconstruction and maintenance as outlined 
above. Therefore, city staff contracted with and a sewer rate study was conducted by 
Springsted Inc. 

253



 
Discussion 

Springsted Inc has become a top municipal advisor in Kansas. They have served Kansas 
communities for over 25 years including Wichita, Sedgwick County, Johnson County, 
Lawrence, Manhattan, Pittsburg, Newton and Baldwin City. Their approach in the rate 
study included: 1) An understanding of the utility’s cash flow requirements over the 
course of the fiscal year; 2) Establishing adequate levels of cash reserves; 3) Integration 
of projected new utility debt into the City’s overall debt management plan; and 4) 
Effectively communicating a level of financial management to the credit rating agencies. 
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to moving forward as staff has recommended. 
  

Financial Consideration 
This study was undertaken to review and analyze the City’s sewer utility to determine the 
appropriate rate structure needed to pay for anticipated operating expenditures, to provide 
for anticipated capital improvements, to provide operating cash flow, and to ensure an 
adequate level of cash reserves.  
 
The following conclusions were determined as a result of this study and the financial 
projections prepared:  

1. Operating income in the sewer fund has been positive the last three years, but 
has decreased since 2012. 

2. The minimum cash position in any given year should be $500,000 once the 
water and sewer funds are split. 

3. Monthly sewer user rates should be increased 15% September 1, 2015, 15% 
annually 2016-2020 and 12% in 2021.  

 
These rate increases are needed to fund anticipated cash needs including: 
 *operating and maintenance expenses 
 *current and proposed debt service requirements 
 *capital improvements 
 *cash reserves for future operations and capital improvements 
 
Attached is a chart illustrating the projected average residential bill for the four options 
over the period of increases as well as a comparison to cities in Kansas. In the second 
column labeled 2021 or last increase, the chart does assume a 4% increase for each 
comparison city. 
 
Review of the sufficiency of the rates on an annual basis concurrent with the 
development of each year’s budget will be conducted based upon actual performance and 
on the final construction costs of the anticipated capital improvements. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 
 
Option 1 – Original Springsted Recommendation 
 17% September 1, 15.5% annually 2016-2020 and 12% in 2021 
 SRF Loan level debt service with normal 20 year amortization 

254



 Total Cumulative rate increase = 169% 
 Total debt service $37,744,495 
 
Option 2 – 15% September 1, 15% annually 2016-2020 and 12% in 2021 
 SRF Loan level debt service with normal 20 year amortization 
 Total Cumulative rate increase = 159% 
 Total debt service $37,744,495 
 
Option 3 – 8.5% September 1, 8.5% annually 2016-2029 
 SRF Loan debt service delayed until 2025 when the 2009A revenue bond is 
 retired 
 Total cumulative rate increase = 240% 
 Total debt service $39,835,283 
 
Option 4 – 9.5% September 1, 9.5% 2016-2026, then 5% 2027-2029 
 SRF Loan debt service wrapped around the 2009A revenue bond debt service 
  The SRF debt service is lowered by the amount of the 2009A payments  
  and then ramped back up to normal amortization when the 2009A issue is  
  retired 
 Total cumulative rate increase = 244% 
 Total debt service $38,000,169 
 
Illustrations of each option are attached. 

 
Recommendation 

City staff recommends option 2, the monthly sewer base and volumetric user rates should 
be increased 15% September 1, 2015, 15% annually 2016-2020 and 12.0% in 2021. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the resolution increasing monthly sewer base and volumetric user rates 15% on 
September 1, 2015, 15% annually 2016-2020 and 12.0% in 2021 with the option to 
resolution out of the foregoing schedule for some other rate schedule determined at that 
time. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Sewer rate option illustrations 
Sewer rate comparison chart 
Resolution 

255



OPTION 1 ‐ Projected Rate Adjustments and Cash Analysis ‐ Original Springsted recommendation

Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

% Increase 17.0% 15.5% 15.5% 15.5% 15.5% 15.5% 12.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f. $15.83 $18.28 $21.12 $24.39 $28.17 $32.54 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44

Ending Cash including reserves $2,061,755 $2,266,454 $2,838,012 $1,467,026 $582,075 $269,355 $465,221 $617,769 $724,240 $784,827 $945,096 $1,051,637 $1,102,554 $1,095,886 $1,029,612

Level debt service ‐ normal 20 year amotization
New debt service payment
Total Debt service
Cumulative rate increase

$1,887,224
$37,744,495

269%

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

$40.00

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

$15.83
$18.28

$21.12
$24.39

$28.17
$32.54

$36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44 $36.44

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f.

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f.

256



OPTION 2 ‐ Projected Rate Adjustments and Cash Analysis ‐ 15% to 2020 then 12% in 2021

Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

% Increase 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 12.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f. $15.56 $17.89 $20.58 $23.66 $27.21 $31.30 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05

Ending Cash including reserves $2,077,637 $2,244,603 $2,760,369 $1,384,035 $470,393 $96,398 $212,609 $281,261 $301,239 $271,388 $337,429 $346,714 $297,779 $189,122 $19,205

Level debt service ‐ normal 20 year amortization
New debt service payment
Total Debt service
Cumulative rate increase

$1,887,224
$37,744,495

259%

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

$40.00

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

$15.56
$17.89

$20.58
$23.66

$27.21
$31.30

$35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05 $35.05

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f.

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f.

257



OPTION 3 ‐ Projected Rate Adjustments and Cash Analysis ‐ 8.5% to 2029 ‐ delayed payments

Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

% Increase 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5%

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f. $14.68 $15.93 $17.28 $18.75 $20.34 $22.07 $23.95 $25.99 $28.19 $30.59 $33.19 $36.01 $39.07 $42.39 $46.00

Ending Cash including reserves $2,031,754 $2,004,405 $2,143,128 $1,373,492 $798,763 $439,970 $316,220 $450,164 $866,426 $1,591,781 $784,485 $337,414 $284,646 $663,241 $1,513,502

Delayed debt service to 2025
New debt service payment
Total Debt service
Cumulative rate increase

$2,697,542
$39,835,283

340%

$0.00
$5.00
$10.00
$15.00
$20.00
$25.00
$30.00
$35.00
$40.00
$45.00
$50.00

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

$14.68 $15.93 $17.28 $18.75 $20.34 $22.07 $23.95 $25.99 $28.19
$30.59

$33.19
$36.01

$39.07
$42.39

$46.00

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f.

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f.

258



OPTION 4 ‐ Projected Rate Adjustments and Cash Analysis ‐ 9.5% to 2026 then 5% to 2029 ‐ wrap around debt service

Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

% Increase 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f. $14.82 $16.22 $17.76 $19.45 $21.30 $23.32 $25.54 $27.96 $30.62 $33.53 $36.72 $40.20 $42.21 $44.32 $46.54

Ending Cash including reserves $2,008,813 $2,010,970 $2,205,631 $463,540 ‐$1,050,252 ‐$2,308,983 ‐$3,287,068 ‐$3,954,539 ‐$4,278,516 ‐$4,222,923 ‐$3,848,025 ‐$3,259,357 ‐$2,444,848 ‐$1,391,794 ‐$86,816

Wrap around debt service to 2025
New debt service payment

Total Debt Service
Cumuluative Rate Increase

$1,739,724
$1,986,316
$38,000,169

344%

$0.00
$5.00
$10.00
$15.00
$20.00
$25.00
$30.00
$35.00
$40.00
$45.00
$50.00

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

$14.82 $16.22 $17.76 $19.45 $21.30 $23.32 $25.54
$27.96

$30.62
$33.53

$36.72
$40.20 $42.21 $44.32 $46.54

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f.

Avg Residential Rate 500 c.f.

259



Average Residential Monthly Charges ‐ 500 c.f.

City Current 2021 or last increase
Hays 1 $13.53 $36.44
Hays 2 $13.53 $35.05
Hays 3 $13.53 $46.00
Hays 4 $13.53 $46.54
Wichita $19.96 $25.26
Olathe $32.81 $41.52
Topeka $24.50 $31.00
Lawrence $31.64 $40.03
Manhattan $29.03 $36.73
Salina $26.06 $32.97
Hutchinson $14.60 $18.47
Leavenworth $18.89 $23.90
Dodge City $24.43 $30.91
Garden City $20.30 $25.69
Lenexa $25.80 $32.65
Leawood $25.80 $32.65
Prairie Village $25.80 $32.65
Junction City $35.04 $44.34
Emporia $32.07 $44.29
Newton $50.77 $64.24

$0.00

$10.00

$20.00

$30.00

$40.00

$50.00

$60.00

$70.00

$13.53 $13.53 $13.53 $13.53

$19.96

$32.81

$24.50

$31.64
$29.03

$26.06

$14.60
$18.89

$24.43
$20.30

$25.80 $25.80 $25.80

$35.04
$32.07

$50.77

$36.44 $35.05

$46.00 $46.54

$25.26

$41.52

$31.00

$40.03
$36.73

$32.97

$18.47
$23.90

$30.91
$25.69

$32.65 $32.65 $32.65

$44.34 $44.29

$64.24

Current 2021 or last increase

260



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION MODIFYING THE SEWER RATES FOR 
RESIDENTIAL AND BUSINESS CUSTOMERS WITHIN THE 
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS. 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Hays, Kansas, pursuant to Ordinance No. 
3747, as passed on May 22, 2008, is to set a fee for sewer rates for residential and business 
customers within the City of Hays, by resolution. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF HAYS, KANSAS, that it is necessary to modify sewer rates for residential and business 
customers within the City of Hays; and the City hereby sets those rates, commencing with billings 
generated on or after August 1, 2015, as follows: 
 
 a. Minimum Service Charge. 

Meter Size 
(inches) 

Inside City Limits 
(per month, in dollars) 

Outside City Limits 
(per month, in dollars) 

5/8   

¾   

1   

1½   

2   

3   

4   

6   
 

b. Residential Users with No City Water Service. All monthly sewer charges for 
residential users with no city water service shall be $_________ per month. Outside 
city limits rate shall be $______________.  

c. Sewer Service Charges for Residential. 

Cubic Feet of Water Usage Inside City Limits 
(per 100 cubic feet, in dollars) 

Outside City Limits 
(per 100 cubic feet, 
in dollars) 

First 100 Included in minimum Included in minimum 

Any additional usage   
 
d. Sewer Service Charges for Business. 
 

Cubic Feet of Water Usage Inside City Limits 
(per 100 cubic feet, in dollars) 

Outside City Limits 
(per 100 cubic feet, in dollars) 

261



First 100 Included in minimum Included in minimum 

Any additional usage   
 

 e. Extra Strength Surcharge, Unit Charge. 
 

Cost Parameter 
User Charge 
Portion 
($/lb) 

Inside the City 
Limits 
($/lb) 

Outside the City 
Limits 
($/lb) 

BOD    

Suspended solids    
 

These rates shall be modified by increasing them by ___________ of the rate then existing, rounded 
up to the nearest whole cent, each successive year on January 1st , beginning January 1, 2016 and 
continuing through January 1, 2020, and by increasing them by  _________% of the rate then 
existing in 2021, unless the Governing Body, by resolution, determines otherwise. 
 

This resolution shall be effective upon its passage. 
 

Adopted by the Commission on the _____ day of _______________, 2015. 
 
 

___________________________ 
EBER PHELPS 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 

(SEAL) 

262


	8-6-15 Work Session Memo
	8-6-15 Work Session Agenda
	7-16-15 Work Session Notes
	NWK Investments - Request for Economic Development Incentives
	S&W Alley Pavement - Benefit District Resolution
	S&W Alley Pavement - Award of Bid
	Tallgrass Addition Phase 5 - Inspection
	Sewer Rate Study/Adjustment



